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() General Information

4

BMSC

Together we strive, Together we win

Securities code

BMS

Charter capital

711.114.250.000 VND

Owner's Equity

864.524.009.650 VND

Trading name

BAO MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

License for establishment and operation humber
90/UBCK-GP issued by the State Securities Commission on April
21, 2008 and its amended Licenses

Certificate of business registration number

0102727651 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment
of Ho Chi Minh City for the first time on April 21, 2008, and
registered for the 14th change on September 25, 2024

Address
3rd Floor, Pax Sky Building, No. 34A Pham Ngoc Thach, Vo Thi Sau
Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

Phone number
(84-28) 7306 8686

Fax number
(84-28) 38247436

Website
https://www.bmsc.com.vn/



Formation and development

The company officially
operates  under the
Establishrment and
Operation Llicense No.
g0/uBCK-GP  dated
April 21, 2008 issued by
the State Securities
Commission, with
initial charter capital of
VND 300 billion.

2008 2009

The company became a
public company

On December 31, 2010,
implementing the Board of charter capital
Directors’ policy on long-
term and comprehensive
development orlentation,
the Company moved [ts approval to register
headquarters from Hanoi
City to Ho Chi Minh City

500.000.000.000

Company

Stock Exchange.

on May 12, 2008,

The company increased its
te  VHND

On August 1, 2008, the

received

trade shares on the Hanoi

609.883.760.000.

stock Exchange

the

Company was approved to
become a depository

member

The company held an extroordinary
meeting of shareholders to elect a new
Board of Directors aond Board of
Supervisors. The Executive Board has
restructured the Company, attracted and
built a quality staff, outlined new
development strategies and is moving
towards a long-term strategic vision
towards a modemn and dynamic
investment banking model

The company increased its
charter capital to YND
569.999.860.000

On December 24, 2021, the
Company was licensed by
the State Securities
Commission to distribute
public fund certificates

The company increased
its charter capital to VND

On April 28, 2022, the
Company was approved
to te become a
member of the Vietnam

The company increased its

charter capital to
7n4.250.000.

On January 23, 2024, the
Company was approved to

become a member

Viethnam Stock Exchange's

private  corporate
trading.

On January 25, 2024, the
Company was approved to
connect transactions of the

private  corporate

market with the Hanol Stock

Exchange

The company increased its
charter copital to VND
646.476.130.000



() Business lines and location

Business lines of the Company

(@ Securities brokerage

s Securities brokerage services and W’_
securities services .

¢ Account management
+ Shareholder management
s Fund certificate distribution &&&

@ Proprietary trading

* Government bond investment a
Corporate bond investment

Investing In listed stocks I

Investing in unlisted stocks

[. Securities issuing underwriting

+ [ssuance of shares
* |ssuance of bonds
* Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A]

* Capital arrangements /M\

(@ Securities investment consuiting

« Portfolio consulting
¢ Update market information

+ Market assessment and analysis - ] |:| ¢ l:l

Business location

Currently BMSC Ol'll'y' operutes at the head office, address:
3rd Floor, Pax Sky Building, No. 34A Pham Ngoc Thach, Vo Thi Sau

Ward, District 3,Ho Chi Minh City
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‘i )’ Organizational structure and corporate 'i
governance model

® General Meeting of Shareholders
General Meeting of Shareholders is the highest decision-making body of the Company. The

General Meeting of Shareholders has the duty to approve the annual financial report; approve
the report of the Board of Directors on business operation; decide on business and investment
plans and tasks and investments; approve the addition and amendment of the Company's
Charter; elect, dismiss, and remove members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Board of Supervisors; decide on the organizational structure of the Company and excersise PLAN
other rights according to the provisions of the Charter and the law

@ Board of Directors CUDRDINATE

Board of Directors is elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders, is the Company's
management body, has full authority on behalf of the Company to decide and exercise rights _
and obligations not under the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The rights and - . EDNTRDL
obligations of the Board of Directors are prescribed by law, the Company Charter, Internal .
Management Regulations and Resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharehalders.

The Company's Board of Directors consists of 05 members, with a term of 05 years. The
Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected unanimously by the Board of Directors.

The subcommittees of the Board of Directors include: Internal Audit Committee and Risk

Management Committee LEAD ERSHIP

(@ Board of Supervisors
Board of Supervisors is elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of DRGANIZE
Supervisors represents the shareholders to supervise dll business, management and
operation activities of the Company and is under the direct leadership of the General Meeting c UM M AND
of Shareholders. The Company's Board of Supervisors consists of 03 members, with a term of
05 years. The Head of the Board of Supervisors is elected unanimously by the members of the
Board

(@ Executive Board
Including 01 Chief Executive Officer. Chief Executive Officer is the person who runs all daily
business activities of the Company, Is responsible to the Board of Directors and the General
Mesting of Shareholders for all his decislons related to the Company’s business activities



Organizational Structure and Management Framewaork of the Company

General Meeting of
Shareholders

Board of Directors

Internal Audit
Subcommittee

Executive Board

Supervisory Board

Risk Management
Subcommittee

Source: BMSC



Divisions, Functional Departments

Executive Board

Investment Banking Securities Brokerage Operations Division
Division Division

Carporate Irokercg Investment : g
Finance 5 Finance riarmation Risk Hurman Internal

tesearch & Capite ¢ Monoge- ces ( :
Consuiting Research & s : Capita and Technology Manag Resource Control

B ipyar Ih.!kj,-.ﬁ_r- 2 e Departmeant Accounting Departrnent o _-'_ i Department Bl Departmeant
Peparme sartment Department
writing PTG " = Department Department partmen
Bapt

The specialized functional Divisions and Departments have the function of advising and assisting the Executive Board,
directly performing professional tasks under the direction of the Executive Board

» Investment Banking Division includes: Corporate Finance Consulting & Underwriting Dept Department, Research & Analysis

Department

o
Securities Brokerage Division includes: Brokerage and Investment Consulting Department, Investment - Proprietary Trading
Department, Capital Department

Lia)

The Operations Division includes: Finance and Accounting Department, Information Technology Department, Risk

Munagement DE'FJCII"EmEFIt, Internal Control Depurtment, Human Resources Depmtment a



() Development Strategy

Main objectives

Capital Resources

With a modest operating capital scale compared to other companies in the sarme industry, the Company aims to
continue to seek channels to mobilize capital to increase charter capital in the following years. In addition, the
Company maintains and develops relationships with financial institutions in the market to diversify accessible
capital sources to support and develop business activities

Business activities

Expanding securities brokerage activities by () promoting the provision of high-end financial services, (ii)
expanding margin lending activities, (iii) developing the sales staff. The Company continues to maintain and
develop its proprietary trading, consulting and underwriting activities, taking full advantage of the advantages it has
built to optimize operational efficiency and enhance competitiveness in the market

Information technology infrastructure

With a customer-centric strategy, the Company focuses on building optimal products, improving user experience;
at the same time, ensuring absclute information security, asset security for customers as well as complying with
management regulatory requirements of agencies and sectors

Organizational structure and personnel

The company has perfected its organizational structure and management apparatus in a streamlined and
reascncble manner to help optimize operational efficiency. The Company maintains stable human resources in
departments, promotes training and encourages and supports employees to improve their professional expertise
and management skills to increase labor productivity and improve the quality of the Company's services



Medium and long term
development strategies

21

BMSC aims to become a reputable
Securities Company in the Viethamese
stock market, providing high-quality
services with advanced trading
platforms and a team of experienced

and dedicated professionals R

(o : =
= | D)

-

Development of brokerage activities

» [nvest in technology to improve trading platforms, expand products
offerings, enhance service quality, thereby enhancing user experience
* Expand market share by reaching new customer segments

Expansion of investment activities and provide financial services

s Take advantage of capital increase to promote proprietary trading
activities in a sustainable and effective manner

s Improve corporate finance consulting and underwriting capacity;
develop financial services to meet the increasing demands of the
market

Building a solid infrastructure

» Invest in information technology, improve trading systems and risk
management

» Develop high-quality human resources, enhance specialized training
to boost competitiveness

» Strengthen corporate governance with an aim for transparent and
efficient operating model|

10



The Company's short-term and
medium-term sustainability
goals (environmental, social,
community) and related key
programs

Deeply aware of corporate responsibility in harmonizing
business growth cnd sustainable community development,
the Company actively participates in charity activities,
accompanying society through sponsorship programs and
meaningful contributions. With a long-term commitment, the
Company will continuously expand and promote these
activities, contributing to creating a humane and sustainable
development community

The Company aims for sustainable development in business
operations by focusing on improving the quality of human
resources through training and skill development, creating
conditions for employees to maximize their capacity. The
Company builds a friendly working environment, aiming at
employee engagement and happiness

With these goals, the Company aims for long-term
development and contributes to building a civilized
community where businesses and society develop together in
harmony and sustainability




() Risk factors

Economic risk

Economic growth: Overall, the global economy Is forecast to grow steadily but below its long-term average,
with global inflatien trending down and global trade recovering. However, the world diso faces many challenges
thot could slow down growth, from increasing geopolitical instability, trade protectionism, climate change
leading to extreme weather events that could push inflation up and slow global economic growth

The changing global economic landscape alse poses many challenges to domestic economic activities.
Pressure from world oil and commuodity prices and exchange rate fluctuations may negatively affect exports,
imports and purchasing power; global economic fluctuations and trade protectionism trends of the US and
major countries may put pressure on Vietnam's economic growth opportunities; climate change and rapid
population aging are potential threats to Vistnam's long-term macroeconomic financial stability

Inflation: The price stability objective of monetary policy Is expected to face many challenges. Military conflicts,
trode competition between major countries, extreme weather events, ete. can disrupt supply chains, increase
transportation costs, impact price fluctuations of strotegic commedities around the world, and possibly trigger o
new wave of inflation, slowing global economic growth ond causing unemployment to rise again

Domeastically, the cost of row materials for production may increase according to world prices while being
affected by exchange rate fluctuations, affecting costs and product prices, creating pressure on business
procuction and thersby pushing up domestic consumer goods prices and creating pressure on inflation. In
addition, stimulus packages, lowering lending interest rates, expanding credit, and boasting public investrment
help to ease economic difficulties, but can also put pressure on price levels if money supply is not properly
controlled

Interest rate and exchange rate management: The State Bank's management of interest rates and exchange
rates is expected to face many difficulties as major central banks may change their management stance to
deal with the situation of rising Inflation again. In addition, the recent appreciation of the USD and cancerns
surrounding the US putting Vietnam on the currency manipulation manitering list have clso caused certain
challenges for the State Bank's exchange rate management, making the rcom for current monetary policy
significantly narrower

Foreign capital flows in the stock market may weaken when exchange rate fluctuations are not effectively
controlled. When the foreign exchange market and the economy are unfavorable, negative fluctuations con
spread to the stock market, thereby indirectly affecting the Company's investment portfolic and business
operations. In addition, exchange rate risks ciso affect customers' investment decisions, disrupting capital flows
into the market




Legal risk

Legal risks are risks of policy changes that are unfavorable to a companys
business operations. Legal risks are clso risks arising from untimely and
inoppropricte  application of legal documents during the Company's
cperations

The Company's cperations are supervised by a system of state agencies
including: Ministry of Finance, State Securities Commission (ssc), vietnam
Stock Exchange (VNX), Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE), Hanoi Stock
Exchange (HNX), Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
(vsbc), Ho chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment, Ho Chi Minh
City Tax Department and a number of local departments and agencies and
regulatad by the system of legal documents including: Law on Enterprises, Law
on Securities, legal documents, relevant Decrees and Circulars. Any changes in
the law and relevant legal environment may impact the Company's business
operations

In the recent pericd, regulaotions on securities and the securities market have
been continuously improved by management agencies te enhance
transparency, safety and efficiency. The amended Law on Securities and
quiding documents have been [ssued to conform to the International
integration trend, while addressing previously existing limitations. In the context
of the legal framework that is still being gradually improved and perfectad, to
minimize risks arising related to legal factors during operations, the Company
always closely monitors and studies relevant legal information, premptly
disseminates new circular regulotions, and advises the Executive Board and
departments in developing regulations, procedures, and authorizations to
serve the management and operation work, The Company has also issuead risk
management and internal control procedures, regulations, ond specific
business procedures for each department and each employee in the
Company, helping to minimize legal risks that may arise

Other risks

The Company’s business operations may be offected by force majeure risks such as
natural disasters, droughts, storms, floods, earthquakes, epidemics, fires, wars, or political
and social upheavals. These incidents can cause serious damage to property, people
ond disrupt the Company's operations. At the same time, they also negatively aiffect
potential markets, reduce profits and create instability in the economy. Although the
likelihood of these risks oceurring is low, when they do occur, the consequences can be
huge, weakening business operations and affecting investor sentiment, causing them to
be apprehensive and reducing the valus of stocks on the market. In order to minimize
damage, the Company has developed crisis response scenarios, ensuring adaptability
and mitigating negative impacts from unexpected incidents

R
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk arising from the Company's customers and partners not fulfilling their committed debt obligations, leading to losses for the Company. According to
current regulations, securities companies are not allowed to lend money or securities in any form except in the case of perforrming securities brokerage services. Therefore,
this risk only arises for deposits at credit institutions and margin lending activities

For deposits at credit institutions, BMSC manages credit risks by assessing the credit quality of credit institutions before conducting transactions and periodically throughout
the service use process based on multi-faceted assessments such as credit ratings, assessment of financial status and stability of financial institutions, review of compliance
with legal regulations on capital ratios, ete. The Company only makes decisions to transact with credit institutions that have transparent, stable operations and sustainable
development strategies and offer service provision proposals at reasonable costs

Margin lending is o lending activity based on collateral being the customer's securities portfolio that BMSC accepts for margin lending in accordance with the provisions of
law. Credit risk arises when the Company cannot recover the full amount of debt after handling all of the custormer's collateral, or cannot handle the collateral due to illiquidity
and sharp price declines in securities, or delisting, or the customer does not provide enough collateral. Currently, the Company maintains only a negligible margin lending
limit in totol assets. However, in the future, with the crientation of developing securities brokerage services, the Company plans to allocate more resources to expand margin
lending sales as well as margin portfolio. Therefore, the Company determines that credit risk management for margin lending activities Is a mandatory requirement in the
Company's overdll long-term development stratagy. To minimize this risk, BMSC simultanecusly implements the following measures:

= Build appropriate loan limits according to customer groups

= Analyze and evaluate price fluctuations and stock liquidity based on financial and business analysis reports of the enterprise

« Daily collateral monitoring report, monitor unusual fluctuations for timely handling

* Menitor outstanding debt by customer, by stock code

Bond investrment cctivities are associated with the risk that the bond issuer is unable to pay when due, or the issuer develops factors that put the bond at risk of losing
liquidlity. Te mitigate these risks, BMSC conducts assessments before making investments

14



The Taompany's main butiness activities are directly and
indirectly affected by market risks, including: proprietary
trading activities (investment in bonds, stocks) and margin
trading lending activities. The Company’s revenue and profits
from these activities may be affected by fluctuations in
market conditions due to economic and political situations;
changes in legaol regulations, macro-management policies of
the State or related countries, administrative supervision
policies or possibly due to other factors beyend control such
as apldemics and natural disasters

Tha Company manages risk by selecting investments with
stable and long-term growth potential, while adhering to
strict investment restrictions. The Analysis Department
manitors, evaluates and makes recommendations to ensure
tha portfolic is efficient and within acceptable limits. The risk
control department assesses and establishes investment
restrictions to assist departments in promptly identifying and
managing risks, including foctors that affect customers’
ability to pay. In addition, the Company has established
regulations on loan limits, investment portfolios and risk
management policies. This helps ensure transparency and
objectivity in the Company’s business operations

Liguidity risk occurs when BMSC jis upoble to fulfill its
obligations to pay part or all of its due debts, fails to meet the
payment nesds of investors using margin loans for securities
purchases, and is late or fails to mest the requirements ot
payment activities to investors in the fastest, safest and most
cost-effective manner. For this risk, BMSC always strictly
controis through the following activities:

= Develop annual capital plans for each activity and
business;
identify risk limits for soch activity
Monitor asset liquidity for timely disposal
Maintaln overdrart limits at partner banks
Strictly comply with financial safety regulations

@ & 8 @

The stock market is currently a fast-growing and potential industry, bringing many opportunities as
well as challenges to the workforce in the market. Human resource risk in the securities industry isa
notable challenge given the unique nature of the sactor, which raquires high levels of professional
skills, professional ethics and the abliity to make quick decisions In a constantly changing
environment. Common risks may include a shortage of high-quality human resources, competition to
attract human resources among securities companies, or ethical risks such as |
market manipulation

Human resources are one of the core elements of the Company. A well-rounded
will brirng competitive advantages and outstanding value to the business. BMSC
skills and prolessional knowledge for its stafl, constantly improving their capacity a
ethics, meeting the needs and constant changes of the industry and markat

With the goal of retaining and attracting high-quality personnel in the market, the Company has buiit
a set of criterio to evaluate the capacity of each level of personnel based on d set of criterio on work
results, working time, professional gualifications. othar skills, stc. to create a fair and transparent
working environment. The company regularly organizes movement and collective activities to bulld a
united and healthy corporate culture

Regulatery compliance risks include viclations of legal regulations and industry-specific regulations.
The risks of non-compliance Wwith l=gal regulations can lead to serious consequences, including
penalties from regulatory agencies, loss of reputation with customers, and direct financial losses to
the Company. inaddition, the increasing complexity of regulations and legal requirements in the
financial sector makes this risk more difficult to control. To limit this risk, the Company. regularly
meniters and promptly disseminates changes in lows and industry regulations. In addition, the
Company works closely with legal experts and regulators to resolve complex issues and comply with
periodic audit requirements. Managing contracts and forms through careful review and maintaining
a legal filing system is also a way to protect the company’s rights and responsibilities

Risks of compliance with procedures include viclations of business principles, transaction errors due
to incorrect procedures causing doamage to assets, reputation and affecting the Company's image

Aware of the risks involved, BMSC always focuses on building strict principles and processes in
providing services to customers as well as internal operations monogement. The: Company
continuously monitors and evoluates implementation effectiveness to ensure processes are
performed correctly and consistently. To prevent risks, BMSC applies many effective measures,
inciuding building an operating apparatus with cross-checking between departments, establishing o
professional and transparent internal monitoring system, and applying strict disciplinary measures
for violations. These efforts help BMSC not only improve management efficiency but also maintain
customer trust and satisfaction
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() Business performance in 2024

a1 Vietnam's Economy in 2024
Economic growth exceeds target

In 2024, Vietham's economy achleved impressive growth with GDP
increasing by 7.09% over the previous year, exceeding the target of
6.5% - 7% set by the National Assembly. The main driving force came
from merchandise export trade activities with merchandise export
turnover reaching UsSD 4055 billion, up 14.3% over the previous year.
Industrial production recorded a positive growth rate of B.4%, with the
average PMI reaching 511 points. Private consumption and investment
recovered slowly, with retail sales of goods and services growth
estimated at 9.0% over the same period. In particular, realized foreign
direct Investment (FDI) reached USD 25.4 billion, the highest level ever

Gonsumer Price index (CPI) Growth Rate (%)
Source: General Stofstics Office of Wetnam
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Proactive and flexible monetary policy to support the economy

In 2024, the State Bank guided the expansionary moneytary policy, while operating
flexibly to adapt to the domestic and international economic situation
= Regarding Interest rate management, the expansionary monetary policy
combined with the FED Interest rates cuts allowed the State Bank maintain low
interest rates throughout 2024, As of December 2024, the average lending
interest rate decreased by about 0.96% compared te 2023
= Regarding exchange rate management, the State Bank proactively responded
to external pressure by issuing treasury bills and selling USD, and exchange rate
fluctuations were within the allowable range
Average CPIl in 2024 increased by 3.63% compared to 2023, achieving the target set
by the National Assembly. This is the 10th consecutive year that Vietham has
succeeded in controlling inflation according to the National Assembly’s target, in
line with the domestic socio-economic situgtion, supperting ecconomic growth,
contributing to macroeconomic stability, and being a bright spot in Vietnam's

economic development results in 2024
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L’lqﬂ)ih Stock market overview in 2024

In 2024, the stock market was greatly influenced by monetary policies and political factors both domestically and internationally, recording

many important developments

Overview
By the end of 2024, the market capitalization of Viethamese stocks reached
VND 7 trillion, an increase of 19.3% compared to the end of 2023. At the end of
the last trading session, the VN-Index reached 12668 points, up 121%
compared to the end of last year; the average trading value reached VYND
21,008 billion/session, up 19.5% compared to the average in 2023. Total foreign
transaction value reached VND 454,392 billion, accounting for nearly 8.1% in
volume and 10.4% in transaction value. The VN-index fluctuated around the
resistance level of 1300 throughout the last three quarters of 2024, despite the
positive GDP growth, for the following main reasons:
* Net selling pressure from foreign Investors due to interest rate differentials
and exchange rate pressure
* Cautious sentiment in the context of unstable international macro,
escalating geopolitical tensions in the Middle East
» The government tightened the bond market, dealt with stock price
manipulation cases, the implementation of the KRX trading system and the
upgrade to emerging market status did not meet expectations

¢ Many difficulties related to banking, real estate, construction sectors
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1.150,00
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VN-Index Movements in 2024
Mepudn: Fifn-pra

Muass capital increase at securities companies

The period 2021 - 2024 recorded capital increase activities of a series of
securities companies, especially the group of securities companies owned
by banks, with the purpose of: (i) increase capacity in the context of high
competitive pressure, (ii) expand margin lending capacity which is expected
to increase sharply in the coming period; (iil) diversify business activities; (iv)
prepare for market upgrade

18



Participation of individual investors

The number of domestic individual securities trading accounts has reached more
than 9.5 million accounts by the end of 2024, equivalent to about 9% of Vietnam's
population, reaching the target of 8 million accounts ahead of schedule in 2025 and
aiming for 11 million accounts by 2030 according to the Stock Market Development
Strategy set forth by the Government

Due to the strong impact during the Covid-19 period with many stimulus packages
and the period of low-cost capital, the number of individual investors participating
in the stock market increased dramatically in the period of 2020 - 2022 and
gradually wecokened in the post-Covid period. However, the number of newly
opened accounts improved significantly in 2024 when it exceeded the target of 9
millien accounts, equivalent to 9% of the population, and had nearly VND 92,200
killion in deposit balances at 70 securities companies. The penetration of individual
investors is expected to expand over time as: (i) Increasing disposable income
leads to a large demand for investment and increased assets; (ii) Easier access to
investment from the application of technology and improvement of trading

infrastructure and services of securities companies in the market

Number of Investors In the Mariet

Source;, VSDC
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Foreign block activities

In 2024, the market witnessed a strong net selling trend from forelgn investars, with a
total net selling value reaching VND 93,000 billion, the highest level in history. Foreign
investors were selling strongly on the Viethamese stock market due to many
intertwined reasons. In the context of the FED maintaining high interest rates, foreign
investors tended to withdraw from emerging markets to seek more attractive
opportunities. After a period of holding, many investrment funds realized profits when
they surpassed the general growth rate of the Vnindex. Aleng with that, exchange
rate pressure was one of the factors that can significantly affect foreign capital
flows. The continuous appreciation of the USD in 2024 impacted the performance of
foreign funds, limiting the ability to attract capital. The fact that Vietnam's stock
market has not been upgraded also reduced its appeal to international investors,
especially when there were few high-quality IPOs and concerns remained regarding
the quality of banking assets dnd the prospects of the real estate market. More
importantly, despite the impressive growth of Vietnom's economy, the structure of
the stock market failed to reflect this potential. Financial, reql estate and consumer
stocks dominate, while potential sectors such as technolagy and monufacturing
were not strong enough te retain foreign capital

Important adjustments in the legal framework

Also in 2024, many important changes in stock market management were
implemented to shape dnd prormote market upgrading. On September 18, 2024, the
Ministry of Finance issued Circular 68/2024(TT-BTC, allowing foreign institutional
investors to place orders to buy shares without 100% of the money (non-free
funding) and stipulated the roadmaop for information disclosure In English. The
Circular was highly appreciated and created the premise to upgrade Vietnam's
stock market to secondary emerging level by 2025 according to FTSE Russells
upgrade standards. On November 28, 2024, the National Assembly possed the
amended Securities Law, focusing on improving transparency, strengthening
supervision, handling viclations, and perfecting the central clearing counterparty

mechanism. These changes are expected to promote market development and
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Ei Business results in 2024

Revenue

® 292 bllllon

Achieved 112.34% of the pic

Net income

@ 82 billion V,

Achieved 125.38% of the planned

At the end of fiscal year 2024, the Company recorded
positive business results, with revenue and profit targets
exceeding the plan. Specifically, revenue reached VND 292
billlon, profit after tax reached VND 82 billion, respectively
exceeding 12.34% and 25.38% compared to the plan
assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The
from

company's revenue and profits mainly came

proprietary trading activities, including government bonds,
corpordte bonds, and stocks

The company recorded an improvement in operating costs, down 38.51% compared to |ast
year, reaching VND 119 billion, equivalent to only B1.66% of the target set by the General
Meeting of Shareholders. Total cost in 2024 amounted to YND 195 billion, down 13.81%
compared to 2023 and reaching 108.78% of the planned target

Unit miffion VND

Indicator 2023 2024 change (%)
1 | Operating revenue 322.584 292.317 (9,38)
2 |Operating expense 193.548 ns.021 (38,51)
3 | Financlal Income 364 591 62,36
4 | Financial expense 5152 45.864 790,22
5 | kst ipases 26761 20490 1020
6 |Operating result 97.486 98.532 1,07
7 | Other income and expense 8.087 2.753 (65,96)
8 |Profit before tax 105.573 101.286 (4,06)
9 | Profit after tax 84.031 B1.537 (2,97)
10 ?33:},:::;593 per share 1,099 1,065 (4,00)

Source. BMSC's audited financial statements for 2023 and 2024
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Revenue structure by main business areas

2023
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8 Fnancial Achancey Cther Achivities

Proprietary Trading Revenue has always accounted for the largest proportion in
the revenue structure in recent years. Specifically, revenue from proprietary
trading activities in 2024 reached VND 242 billion, accounting for 82.83% of total
operating revenue and decreasing by 2151% compared to last year, completing
109.26% of the 2024 business plan. Of which, profit from financial assets recorded
through profit/loss reached VND 215 billion, down 30.31% compared to last year,
including profit from selling financial assets, difference in revaluation of assets
and dividends, interest arising from financial assets. At the same time, the
Company recorded interest from investments held to maturity of VND 27 billion.
The Companys investment and trading activities mainly focused on three main
areas: government bonds, corporate bonds and stocks. In which, Government
bonds were considered a low-risk investment channel, bringing stable expected
profits to the Company. In addition to government bonds, the Compuany's
proprietary portfolio was also allocated to a variety of other assets such as stocks,
corporate bonds, certificates of deposit, etc

Revenue from brokerage activities accounted for the next proportion in the
revenue structure. In 2024, operating revenue of this segment reached VND 33
billion, accounting for 1130% of total operating revenue and acheivied an
impressive growth of 361.67% compared to 2023, thereby exceeding the set
revenus plan by 251.71%. All activities in this segment recorded significant growth.
Specifically, revenue from brokerage activities, securities depository activities and
interest from loans and receivables reached YND 26 billion, YND 5 billion and VYND
2 billion, respectively

(7 Revenue from financial consuiting activities cccounted for the

third proportion in the revenue structure. In 2024, operating
revenue of this segment reached VND 16 billion, accounting for
5.64% and increasing by 163.60% compared to last year,
completing 67.67% of the 2024 business plan. Revenue mainly
comes from basic advisory activities in the capital/debt markets,
arranging capital based on traditional client networks and some
new clients

Revenue from other activities remained minor and relatively
stable over the years

Unit miilion VND

Indicators

Securities

brokerage 7.156 2,22 33.037 n3
and custody

Praprakary 308.467 95,62 242118 82,83
trading

Finigheial 6.253 1,94 16.483 5,64
Consulting

Other. 708 0,22 678 023
activities

Operating 322.584 00| 202317 100
Revenue

Source: BMSC's audited financial statements for 2023 and 2024
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Cost structure by main areas of operation

2023

<
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o Anonckl Achdpory Other ACtvies

Proprietary Trading Expenses accounted for the highest proportion in the cost
structure and recorded o decrease compared to 2023. Operating expenses of this
segment reached VND 103 billion, accounting for 86.26% of total operating
expenses and decreased by 43.29% compared to last year. In which, the main
expense recorded due to loss of financial assets measured at falr value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), totaling VND 97 billion

Securities brokerage and custody costs reached VND 10 billion, accounting for
8.08% and increasing by 6141% compared to 2023. This cost growth was
accompanied by a 361.67% growth In revenue, demonstrating increased operating
efficiency as revenue growth was significantly higher than costs. In 2024, the
Company has continued to expand its brokerage and investment consulting
activities

Financial consulting operating expenses during the year reached VND 6 billion,
accounting for 5.24% of total operoting expenses and increasing by 9.69% over the
same period last year. Similar to the brokerage segment, the increase in costs of
this segment was relatively low compared to the 1863.60% growth In revenus,
increasing the profit margin of financial cansulting activities

Indicators

Unit million VND

Securities
brokerage 5.962 3,08 9.622 8,08
and custody
Proprictary 181,057 0354 | 102667 86,26
trading
Fincncial :

i h 8.232
LB 5,681 2,94 _ 524
Other
o Y 848 0,44 500 0.42
Operating 193.548 100 9.0 100
expense

Saurce: BMSC's audited financial statements for 2023 and 2024
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() Organization and personnel

(;!) List of Executive board

® Mr. Phan Tan Thu -
=

Full name Position Academic level: 12/12

Qualification: Bachelor of Economics

" ) Quantity and percentage of securities ownership at Bao Minh of individuals, authorized
] Mr. Phan Tan Thu Chief Executive Officer

representatives and related persons of Mr, Phan Tan Thu:

+ Personal ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company's charter capital

“ Changes in the Executive Board + Representative ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company's charter capital

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company’s charter capital
In 2024, Bao Minh Securities Company did not have any

Working process:
changes in personnel in the Executive Board

From 2005 to 2006 . Specialist of Airports Corporation of Vietnam
o e Inve
From 2006 to 2021 ; Head of Consulting Department, Bank for Investment and
Development of Vietnam Securities Company
Member of Board of Directors of Bao Minh Securities
From 2021 to present :

© Company

From 2022 to 02/2023 : Deputy General Director of Bao Minh Securities Company

From 03/2023 to

. General Director of Bao Minh Securities Company

present

From 082003 to : Director of Thien Phuc New Technology JSC

present

From 04/2024 to . Member of Board of Directors of Binh Dinh Pharmaceutical
present " and Medical Equipment Joint Stock
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Lu) Number of employees

As of December 31, 2024, Boo Minh Securities Company had 40 employees,
with the following structure:
BMSC's labor structure as of December 31, 2024

Criteria Quantity Ratio
I. By qualification 40 100%
+ Postgraduate degree 08 15,00%
+ University degree 27 67,50%
+ College and intermediate level 04 10.00%
+ Unskilled labor 03 7.50%
Il. By nature of contract 40 100%
+ Indefinite term employment 21 52,50%

+ Definite term employment from 12 - 36

9 47,50%
months
+ Definite term employment under 12 0 0%
months
+ Woarkers who do not sign a labor contract = =
lil. By gender 40 100%
+ Male 18 45,00%
+ Femadle 22 55,00%

(), Human Resources Policy

Recruitment Policy

The company not only recruits personnel to meet current job needs but
alsc considers this as an important factor for future development.
Therefore, the recruitment process is carried out occording to clear
standards, in line with the Company's strategic orientation and business
requirements. In addition, the Company focuses on bullding a
comprehensive human resources policy to attract and retain talent
Training policies are implemented to improve expertise, working skills and
adaptability to market changes. Along with that, the salary and benefits
are designed to be competitive, ensuring an attractive working
environment, encouraging employees to contribute and stay long-term
with the Company
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Training and development policy

Deeply aware that human resources are the core
tactor for sustainable development, the Company
always creates favorable conditions for employees to
develop comprehensively, not only in professional
expertise but also in soft skills. The company pays
special attention to  promoting training and
development activities, helping employees improve
their qualifications, professional skills and work ethics

To build an Ideal working environment, the Company
is committed to maintaining a friendly, healthy and
civilized working space, where each individual has
the opportunity to learn, develop and maximize their
potential. The company constantly invests in
intensive  training  programs, seminars  and
extracurricular activities to strengthen skills, build
corporate culture and spread core values among its
staff

In addition, the Company also implements many
pelicies to support cultural, sports and entertainment
activities, contributing to enhaneing positive working
spirit and internal cohesion. These activities not only
enhance the companionship between members but
also contribute to building an energetic and creative
waorking environment

Salary and benefits policy

The company builds a salary and welfare policy with transparent, fair and appropriate criteria to motivate work and
promote the development of the staff. Salarles and bonuses are designed flexibly, baosed on an objective
assessment of the skills, abilities and contributions of each employee

Salary policy

The salary policy is determined by the Company's Executive Board as follows:

Focus on the reasonable competitiveness of the Company’s salary with the labor market to attract talent and
retain skilled workers

Ensure fairness in salary distribution across different positions in the Company by considering the value of each
job position in the Company

Link employee income to the business performance of the Company, Division, Department and the guality of
employee work

Motivate employees to strive to achieve the Company's KPI goals

The Company's salary policy is developed by the Company from time to time and adjusted when necessary to
achieve the goals of the proposed salary system

Bonus and benefits policy

The welfare reward fund is used for the following purposes:

Perledic bonuses for employees on anniversaries, holidays and special days including: New Yedars Day, Lunar
New Year, International Women's Day, Hung Kings' Commemeoration Day, Company Establishment Day, Naticnal
Reunification Day, International Labor Day, National Day, Vietnamese Women's Day, Traditional Day of Vietham
Securities Industry

Performance bonus: based on the company's business results, the performance of each department, and the
level of work completion of each employee

Additional bonuses for groups and individuals with outstanding achievements in the Company's business
activities

Special benuses for employee |ife events such as wedding, birthday or sick leave for employees and their farmily
members

sSubsidies such as: dllowance for employees giving birth, employees’ wives glving birth; allowance for visiting sick
employees and their relatives; allowance for employees when they encounter sudden difficulties in life
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In addition to ensuring full benefits according to the provisions of the Labor Law, BMSC constantly improves the value of employee benefits. The company
organizes annual vacation programs, creating conditions for employees to have time to rest, recharge and strengthen internal cohasion. Comprehensive
health care programs are also implemented, including regular health check-ups and preferential insurance packages, to ensure peace of mind and long-
term health for employees
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““. Big investments, big projects

.. Investment situation,
project implementation

The Company had several major financial investments in 2024 as follows

Unit million VND

Items 2023 2024
Fair value of !Inunchl assets recognized 492.176 677.726
through profit/loss
* |isted stocks and stocks troded on
UPCOM 280.474 336.000
= Unlisted and unregistered stocks 2 157.680
= Money market instruments 0 120.000
= Fund certificate 0 64.036
» Unlisted bonds 201700 0
Held-to-maturity investments 0 459.000
= Unlisted bonds 0 359.000
s listed bonds 0 100.000

Source; BMSC's audited financial statements for 2023 and 2024

“u, Subsidiaries, affiliates

None

¢y Financial situation

The Company's financial situation in 2024 was reflected through
specific indicators as follows:

Unit: rmillion VND

(%)

Total assets 1.170.993 1.762.627 50,52
Net revenue 322.584 292.317 (9,38)
Operating profit 87.486 98532 1,07
Other profits 8.087 2753 (65,86)
Profit before tax 105.573 101.286 (4,06)
Profit after tax 84.031 81.537 (2,97)
Dividend yield ratio P 10 _

dited financlal ;,%ents for 2023 and 2024




Other financial indicators

Unit: million VND
Indicators 3112/2023  31/12/2024
1 | Total market risk value 105.004 263.162
2 | Total payment risk value 36.553 8.593
3 | Total operational risk value 50.000 50.000
4 | Total risk value 191.657 321.755
5 | Available capital 781758 813.862
6 | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)(*) 408, 252,9

Source: Audited financial safety ratio report
for 2023 and 2024

(*] Capital Adequacy Ratio

The company's available capital ratio has always been high compared
to the required ratio (180%) set by the Ministry of Flnance. As of
December 31, 2024, the companys available capital ratio reached
252.9%

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (available capital ratio) is specifically
regulated in Circular No, 91/2020/TT-BTC dated November 13, 2020, by
the Ministry of Finance, which stipulates financial safety indicators and
measures for handling securities businesses that do not meet financial
safety criteria
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Key financial indicators

Indicators Unit 2023 2024
1. Solvency
+ Short-term sclvency ratio Time an 1,95
+ Quick ratio Time an 1,95
2. Capital structure
+ Debt/Total assets ratio % 32,58 50,95
+ Debt/Equity ratio % 4832 103,88
3. Performance indicators
+ Total asset turnover Time 0,29 0,20
4. Indicator of profitability
+ Net profit/net revenue ratio % 26,05 27,89
+ Net profit/Equity ratio % 2 9,86
+ Net profit/Total assets ratio 3 7,65 5,56
oomrcpotoemimopacti | x| anaal SN

Source. BMSC's audited finonciol statements for 2023 and 2024

(/] solvency

To meet the working capital needs for business operations, the Company has
expanded its mobilization of short-term loans, so the outstanding short-term
loans and payables in 2024 increased sharply compared to the previous year,
causing solvency indicators to decrease compared to the same period. However,
these ratios are still greater than |, ensuring the ability to pay due debts. The
Company also maintains a high proportion of highly liquid short-term assets to
meet short-term payment needs

(7 Indicators of capital structure

Due to progctively increasing the mobilization of loan capital to meet the main
business activities, the company's capital structure has changed significantly, the
payable debts have increased sharply, causing all debt ratios to increase.
specifically, the debt/total assets ratio reached 50.95% and the debt/equity ratio
reached 103.88%. Leveraging financial leverage helps the Company improve
operational efficiency, but at the same time requires tight control over loans and
liabilities to maintain financial stability and limit risks

(/] performance indicators

The company's total asset turnover reached 0.20, slightly down from 029 in the
same period last year. This indicator reflects the efficiency of using assets to
generate revenue for the company. This ratio decreased because during the year,
the company's total assets increased more strongly than revenue

(+/ Indicator of profitability
The ratio of operating pmﬂt,i' net revenue reached 33.71% and the ratio of profit
after tax/net revenue of the company reached 27.89%, both higher than the same
period last year. This shows that the company has improved cperating efficiency
from Its core business segments ds well as optimized costs to help increase
profitability.
The ratio of profit after tax/equity reached 9.86%, the ratio of profit after tax/total
assets reached 5.56% due to a sharp increase in total assets and equity in 2024.
The Company has been and is continuing to promote the expansion of assets
and equity to create a foundation for long-term development, expand business
activities and incredse profits in the future
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(5 Shareholder structure

Stock code
il As of December 31, 2024, the Company's charter capital Maximum foreign ownership ratio
/"‘Hﬁ“ N and number of shares are as follows Pursuant to Official Dispatch No. 3034/UBCK-QLKD on the
/— Charter capital; 711.114.250.000 VND announcement of the maximum foreign ownership ratio
( Total number of shares Issued: 71.111.425 shares. |n which at Bao Minh Securities Company dated June 22, 2021 of
B M s *« Number of outstanding shares: 71111425 shares the State Securitles Commission, the maximum forelgn
s Number of treasury shares. [ shares ownership ratio at the Company is 100%
\* Number of freely transferable shares: 71.111.425 shares
-.,___,.4’ Number of shares restricted from transfer: 0 shares

‘% Shareholder structure

List of shareholders of BMSC ds of December 31, 2024 List of major shareholders

Number of .
Subjects Number of g Ownership

Business Reg.
Shareholder No./Citizen ID Address

Quantity  Ownership
share ratio

shareholders ratio (%)
owned

i |Bomestic 2983 70.836.454 99,61 Hamlet 3, Binh Hoa
shareholders Long An Nam Commune. Duc
1 Solar Park 101877825 : 16.370.044 23,02%
; Hue District, Long An
1 | State Shareholder Corporation
Province
2 | Individual shareholder 2971 36.589.058 51,47
4th  Floor, Royal
Organization Building - No. 225
3 | shareholder K| deadiea 0] | g ;;"g:_‘?;? 0313915326 | Nguyen Xi, Ward 13, | 17.067.441 24,00%
P Binh Thanh District,
Il | Foreign shareholders 7 274.9M 0,39 HCMC
1 | Individual shareholder 6 55.471 0,08 i T 126/2 Binh Quol, Ward
3 ) 079153002483 | 27 Binh Thanh 16.356.2898 23,00%
Organization Thi My An s ‘
2 shareholder 1 219.500 0,31 District, HCMC
Total 2.990 71.111.425 100 Tong cong 49.793.783 70,02%




() Report on the company's environmental and social impactsy

£ Environmental responsibility

BMSC is a business operating in the field of Finance - Securities, with
no direct production dctivities affecting the environment. The
company focuses on minimizing negadtive environmental impacts
through energy consumption such as electricity and water. The
company encourages the efficient use of energy resources and the
application of energy-saving solutions in operations. At the same
time, the Company conducts propaganda and raises employees’

awareness of environmental protection responsibilities

#+ Responsibility to employees

The number of employses of the Company as of December 31, 2024 is 40 people,
with an average income of about VND 30 million/person/month

Labor-related policies

The company is always committed to fully implementing legal regulations far
employees, ensuring rights and creating a safe and fair working environment for
cll employees. The Company believes that employee satisfaction and
commitment are the foundation for the Company's sustainable development

The company regularly maintains appropriate annual reward and welfare
policies, demonstrating recognition for employees’ contributions. At the same
time, the Company focuses on training and improving the professional
qgualifications and skills of its staff. The company encourages employees to
attend classes and courses to increase their own capacity. In particular, workers'
income has continuously improved in recent years, demonstrating the
Company's concern for employees’ lives. Tharnks to that, workers are increasingly
attached, contributing to bullding a strong, united collective

The company dlso pays special attention to Internal activities to enhance
cochesion among employees. Every year, the Company organizes teambuilding
activities, travel, and picnics with many diverse activities to help employees relax
and promote team spirit. In addition, the Company always cares about the
spirituci life of employees through organizing events on important holidays such
as Lunar New Year, International Women's Day March 8, International Labor Day
May 1, Mid-Autumn Festival, Christmas... These programs not only bring joy but
also show care and respect for each member of the collective

32



With practical policies and responsibility towards employees, the Company is proud to be a place where employees can fes
secure in their work and stay long-term




£y Responsibility to the social community

In addition to focusing on developing business activities and
taking care of the lives of employees, the Company's Executive
Board is always deeply aware of its responsibility and
contribution te the community and society. The company not
only aims for sustainable growth but also commits to carrying
cut many practical activities to sprecd good values,
contributing to the overall development of soclety

Specifically, in the past year, the Company has contributed to
building the landscape for Phu Rieng High School, a high
school with a long history of achievements in teaching and
education in Binh Phuoc province, but still facing many
difficulties in facilities and teaching equipment. The company
has contributed part of the funding with the school's Executive
Board to build the landscape and decorate the campus to
crecte a fresh environment, suitable and spacious landscape
for students to study and practice

In addition, with the spirit of "Mutual love”, "A piece when
hungry is worth a package when full’, the Company's
collective has accompanied the local government, the
Vietnam Fatherland Front Committee of Thanh An commune
to support the giving of Tet gifts to policy families, poor
households and households in difficult circumstances in
Thanh An island commune, Can Gio district, Ho Chi Minh City.
These activities demonstrate the desire to spread the spirit of
humanity of the Board of Directors to all employees, serving as
a bridge connecting the business and the community. The
company will continue to maintain and expand these
meaningful activities, contributing to a better community




£ Reports on green capital market activities under the guidance of the State Securities Commission

Currently, Bao Minh Securities Company has no activities related to the green capital market, but the Company is still interested in
these activities and has the orientation to participate in the green capital market when fully preparing the necessary resources and
receiving specific instructions from the State Securities Commission
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() Evaluation of business results

At the end of fiscal year 2024, the Company recorded positive
business results with revenue and profit targets exceeding the
set plan. Specifically, revenue redched VND 292 billion and profit
after tax reached VND 82 billion, respectively exceeding 12.34%
and 25.38% compared to the plan assigned by the General
Meeting of Shareholders, This result malnly came from
proprietary trading activities, including investments in
government bonds, corporate bonds and stocks

The financial situation continues to be stable and within the
safe zone, with the capital adequacy ratio always significantly
higher than the legal regulations. The company proactively
controls costs and strictly manages risks, especially in margin
lending and investment activities, with the bad debt ratio kept
at 0. The company alsec promptly adjusts its portfolio when the
market fluctuates strongly, ensuring the efficiency and safety of
all business operations

During the year, the Company completed increasing its charter
capital to more than VND 711 billion through issuing shares to
pay dividends, and at the same time set a target of increasing
capital to VND 2,000 billion in 2025 to serve the expansion
orientation of operations with high capital requirements

The results achieved in 2024 are a solid foundation for the
Company to continue to develop sustainably, expand its scale
and improve its competitiveness. The Executive Board considers
this a clear demonstration of the effectiveness of flexible
business strategies, effective risk management capabilities and
the unanimity and constant efforts of all employees

The progress the Company has achieved

Y/

«

The personal customer development segment is on the rise
compared to previous years. In 2024, in addition to
maintaining the traditional loyal customer base, the Company
has been expanding to many other customer segments such
as customers whose shareholder books are being managed,
customers who have transccted at BM5C but have left, and
customers from referral partnerships

The number of newly opened securities trading dccounts
increased more than in previous years, creating a basis to
continue attracting investors to trade and expand market
share
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Financial situation

Asset situation

By the end of fiscal year 2024, the Company's total assets reached VND
1763 billion, an increase of 50.52% compared to the end of 2023, The
Company's assets are mainly short-term assets, accounting for 97.29%
(December 31, 2024), equivalent to YND 1715 billion and an increase of
47.78% compared to the balance as of December 31, 2023. The increase in
current assets mainly came from an increase in the proportion of cash,
financial assets recognized through profit and loss (FVTPL) and
investments held to maturity (HTM). Accordingly, cash and cash
equivalents increased by 108.05% from VND 243 billion to VND 506 billion.
FWTPL financial assets increased by 37.70% from VND 492 billion to VND
678 billion. Held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, mainly listed and
unlisted bonds, increased from 0 to VND 459 billion

The Company's long-term assets accounted for a low proportion of the
Company's total assets, accounting for only about 2.71% of total assets
(as of December 31, 2024). At the end of 2024, the scale of long-term
assets reached VND 48 blllien, an increase of 350.21% compared to the
balance of long-term assets as of December 31, 2023, due to the increase
in other long-term assets such as pledged assets, mortgages, deposits,
and long-term bets to serve the Company's business activities

Thus, most of the Compaony's assets are short-term assets with high
liguidity, receivables and loans are also tightly controlled to limit risks. In
the asset structure, the Company allocates resources mainly to the
financial asset portfolio (FVTPL), creating strong growth moementum for
the Company
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Unit. million WND

2024
No. Indicat Tas - ch %
o ndicators it Pre P 5‘“’”‘ ange (%)
e ‘”F :_%,_ .

j [FRerterm | . ve0am 99,00| 1.714.832 97,29 41,78
assets

;  |Firsnclal 1152.411 98,41 1712.08] 9713 48,56
assets

g [Chscrai 7.966 0,68 2772 0,16 (65,20)
assets

j (|NODrelGAARE | g 091 47.794 2.7 350,21
assets

1 |Fixed assets 4.39] 0,37 6.442 0,37 46,71
Other non-

2 | eurrent 6.226 053] 41352 235 56418
gssets
Totalassets | 1.170.993 100 | 1.762.626 100 50,52

Source: BMSC's audited financial statements far 2023 and 2024
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2023

10,616

mm  long-term ossel

Unit. million VND

2024

m  Short-tarm osset

47.794

Unit. million VND

879.923

2023

mm  Non-current dabilities

2024

m  Current liabilities

Liabilities situation

By the end of fiscal year 2024, the Company's liabilities reached VND 888 billion, an
increase of 135.42% compared to the end of 2023, of which short-term debt accounts for a
large proportion, reaching 897.98% of total outstanding debt. Short-term debt increased by
136.13% from VND 373 billion to VND 880 billion, mainly due to increased loans and private
bond issuance during the year. Mobilizing loan capital through bonds helps the Company
to be more proactive in controlling cash flow, meeting capital needs for business
operations and not being toc dependent on bank loans; but at the same time, the
Company also needs to strictly control the risk of bond interest payment to ensure the
ability to meet financial obligations on time, avold cash flow pressure and the risk of
financial imbalance

The Company's long-term debt accounted for an insignificant proportion (only 2.02% as of
December 31, 2024), increasing by 105.58% from VND 9 billion (at the end of 2023) to VND 18
billion (at the end of 2024), all of which are deferred income tax payable.

The company's equity increased by 9.5% from VND 790 billion (at the end of 2023) to VND
865 billion (at the end of 2024) due to the Company issuing shares to pay dividends to

existing shareholders and from retained profits from business activities during the year
Unit: milllion VND

2024Nam 2024
Indicator o F'FOF:‘; Eﬂ‘m
1 | Current liabilities 372640 97,68 8?9.923 97,98 136,13
2 | Non-current liabllities 8.843 232 18.179 2,02 105,58
Total liabilities 381.483 100 898.102 100 135,42
Equity 789.510 100| 864.524 100 9,50

Source: BMSC’s audited financial statements for 2023 and 2024
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() Improvements in organizational

structure, policy, management

Cver the past year, the Company has made many
improvements in its organizational structure, policies and
management. Corporate culture is built, creating a positive,
friendly and cohesive working environment for all employees,
The Board of Directors and Executive Boord are experienced
individuals who always demonstrate solidarity and long-term
commitment to the Company

The workforce is stable, meeting the requirements for practice
certificates as prescribed by the State Securities Commission.
With many years of experience in the industry, the team ensures
that securities operations are performed fully, accurately and

promptly

Explanation of the Board of
General Directors regarding
the audit opinion in case the
audit opinion is not an
unqualified opinion

Nane

() Future development plan

]

@

@

The Executive Board aims for comprehensive
development in 2025 with revenue of over VYND 320
billion, pre-tax profit of VND 108 billion and ROE of at
least 10%. The company will promote brokerage
activities, deploy troding cpps, effectively exploit
existing customer files and take advantage of market
opportunities for proprietary trading activities

Strategically, the Company plans to increase its
charter capital to mare than YND 2,000 billlon and list
its shares on HOSE in 2025. At the same time, we will
continue to invest heavily in technology, improve
service guality and secure online transaction systems

Human resources continue to be the focus with the
orientation of recruiting high-quality personnel,
streamlining the apparatus, improving income and
standardizing the KPls system. The company also
pricritizes brand development through digital
communications, linking with partners in the financicl
ecosystem to expand market share and enhance
reputation in the market
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of the Company

Assessment related to environmental indicators

As a business operating in the fleld of Finance - Securities,
BMSC does not directly generate production activities that
have negative impacts on the environment. However, the
Company is always aware of its role and responsibility in
environmental protection and sustainable development
During operation, BMSC focuses on implementing energy-
saving solutions, effectively using electricity, water and office
resources, and encouraging employees to uUse energy
sources reasonably. The company also regularly conducts
internal propaganda to raise environmental awareness,
aiming for o green - clean - efficient working environment

Assessment regarding the Company’'s responsibility

towards the local community

Regarding social respoensibility, BMSC actively participates in
community activities, supporting education and social
security. In addition, the Company always values its
employees, ensures appropriate remuneration, creates
conditions for career development and a fair and civilized
working environment, contributing to improving the quality of
life and long-term commitment of its staff

¢ ) Evaluation reports related to social and environmental responsibility

Assessment related to labor Issues

The company is always committed to fully implementing legal regulations for
employees, ensuring rights and creating o safe and fair working envirenment
for all employees. The Company believes that employee satisfaction and
commitment are the foundation for the Company's sustainable development

The company regularly maintains gppropriote annual reward and welfare
policies, demonstrating recognition for employees contributions. At the same
time, the Company focuses on training and improving the professional
qualifications and skills of its staff. The company encourages employees to
attend classes and courses to increase their own capaocity. In particular,
workers' Income has continuously improved In recent years, demonstrating
the Company's concern for employees’ lives. Thanks to that, workers are
increasingly attached, contributing to building a strong, united collective

The company also pays special attention to internal activities to enhance
cohesion among employees. Every year, the Company organizes
teambuilding activities, travel, and picnics with many diverse activities to
help employees relax and promote team spirit. In addition, the Company
always cares about the spiritual life of employees through organizing events
on important holidays such as Lunar New Year, International Women's Day
March 8, International Labor Day May 1, Mid-Autumn Festival, Christmas..
These programs not only bring joy but also show care and respect for each
member of the collective

With practical policies and responsibility towards employees, the Company is

proud to be a place where employees can feel secure in their work and stay
long-term
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() Evaluation of the Board of Directors

]

]

on performance of the Company

The company has undertaken a restructuring initiative to streamline its
management system, ensuring flexibility and efficiency. The leadership team,
management staff and employees have been reorganized with a focus on
continually enhancing their management and professional skills. The
company ensures regular and continuous training in new skills, creating
conditions for employees to maximize their abilities and improve labor
productivity

The business plan is clearly oriented and balanced based on available
capital ond human resources, ensuring complionce with current legal
regulations

All officers and employees trust, unite, work wholeheartedly, and are
determined to complete assigned tasks and plans

Currently, the Company is one of the prestigious enterprises in the
Vietnamese stock market. The Company fully performs business operations
permitted by the State Securities Commission, always ensuring transparency
In investor account management and publicity in business activities

Securities trading activities have contricuted to the majority of the
Company's revenue, in addition, securities brokerage alsc had quite
Impressive revenue in 2024. Other business operdtions dlso contribute
significantly to the Company's annual revenue




Business results

Total revenue reached VYND 292 billion, equal to 20.62% compared
to 2023 and reaching 112.34% of the plan

Total costs were VND 195 billion, down 13.81% compared to 2023 and
reaching 108.78% of the plan

Profit before tax was VYND 101, In which, VND 55 billion was realized
profit, and VND 486 billion was unrealized profit

Profit after tax was VND 82 billion and reached 125.38% of the
business plan assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders
End-of-period equity reached VND 864 billion, an increase of 9.5%
compared to the end of 2023

Total assets reached VND 1763 billion, an increase of 50.52%
compared to 2023

Maintained tight control the margin lending and investment
securities portfolio with a zero bad debt ratio, adjust when market
conditions fluctuate strongly, ensuring safety for the Company
Maintained good relationships with credit institutions, ensuring
capital for business operations

Focused on implementing business activities in a cautious, safe,
risk-limiting and compliance manner with current lows

:[: Bond issuance results report

In 2024, BMS successfully issued two private plocements of non-
convertible, unsecured bonds

Based on Resolution No. 24/2024-BMSC/NQ-HDQT dated June 18, 2024
approved by the Board of Directors on the first private bond issuance in
2024, the Company implemented the procedures for offering and private
issuance of BMS bonds in dccordance with current regulations. Bonds
were successfully issued with o total value of VND 260 billion, first pericd
interest rate of 8.5%/year

Based on Resolution No. 38/2024-BMSC/NQ-HDQT dated September 11,
2024 approved by the Board of Directors on the second private bond
issuance in 2024, the Company Implemented the procedures for offering
and private issuance of BMS bonds In accordance with current
regulations. Bonds were successfully issued with a total value of VND 150
billion, first period interest rate 10%/year

Two successful private bond Issuances with a total value of VND 410 billion
have proven that BMS bonds have received the attention of customers
because BMS bonds are safe and effective investment products, affirming
BMS's position in the financial market

Q About the file of issuing shares to pay dividends

In 2024, the Board of Directors approved the dividend issuance
documents approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders at a rate of 10% in shares for shareholders. On June 19, 2024,
the Company completed the above-mentioned share issuance and on
July 25, 2024, the number of additional issued shares was officially traded
on the Hanoi Stock Exchange

In 2024, the Company completed the amendment and supplementation
of the Charter related to the change of charter capital from VND 646
billlon to VND 711 billion after the end of the dividend share issucnce;
completed the registration of changes to the establishment and
operation license at the State Securities Commission; and at the same
time adjusted the Company's Business License at the Department of
Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City
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"j Evaluation of the Board of
Directors for the Executive Board

The Board of Directors has overseen the Executive Board's implementation of
the General Meeting of Shareholders’ resolutions and the resolutions of the
Board of Directors. The results of the supervision are as follows

@/ The Executive Board closely followed the Resolutions of the Board of
Directors to implement the policies of the Board of Directors, directed
and implemented in accordonce with the decentralization of
authority, inspected and operated all activities of the Company to
complete the set plan

@ The General Director is also a member of the Company's Board of
Directors, so the implementation of the Resolutions took place quickly
and promptly

@ The Executive Board developed a specific and scientific plan, regularly
checked, consulted, debated, and exchanged to make timely and
accurate decisions to manage business operations. The assignment
of each member of the Executive Board was reasonable, suitable to
the business conditions of the enterprise and maximizes the
management and leadership capacity of the members

@" The working relationship between the Executive Board and the Board
of Directors and the Board of Supervisors was in accordance with the
company's governance regulations

@, The Executive Board disclosed information in accordance with the low,
promptly, accurately and honestly. The Executive Board was also
procctive in participating in courses to improve professional and
management skills to ensure the successful completion of its tasks




() Board of Directors' orientation in'2025-

Organization - management

Improve the quality of the management and administration
apparatus of the Board of Directors - Executive Board, strengthen the
role of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in the new
term, promote the role of subcommittees supporting the Board of
Directors, assign specific tasks to each member of the Board of
Directors and Executive Board

Business orientation

Business objectives: Revenue over VND 320 billion, pre-tax profit
reaching YND 108 billion, a minimum ROE of 10%

Promote the implementation of solutions to promote brokerage
activities, deploy securities trading apps to provide more trading
solutions for customers.

Implement solutions to increase active customer retention and
maximize customer base of partner organizations

Take advantage of market opportunities for self-employment
when the market is favorable

Deeply exploit existing customer lists and develop new customers,
prioritizing potential customer groups that are less affected by US
tariff policies and vulnerable to external policies

_.—-——-—l
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Issuing shares to increase charter capital in 2025

It Is expected to increase the company's charter capital from VND 711 billien to
more than VND 2.000 billion through issuing shares from equity and private
issuance

Listing BMS shares on HOSE
Develop a plan and roadmap to list BMS shares on HOSE in 2025

Focus on technology investment
= Continue to invest in IT systems to improve customer service guality
* Enhance the security of online securities trading systems to ensure the safe,
stable and smooth operation of the market

Brand development and reputation enhancement

s Implement solutions to enhance credibility and promote BMSC's brand
through authorities, media, and in conjunction with educational institutions
to promote the brand in the long term

» Take advantage of ecosystem exploitation activities when forming joint
ventures and partnerships with banks to advertise and enhance the brand

= Prioritize improving communication through digital channels and selective
and controlled social platforms to bring the EMSC brand closer to the market
and customers
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Focus on resource development

Strengthening and arranging resource management at BMSC to meet the requirements of the new economic context in the direction of
standards, transparency, and right people for the right job

Training and recruiting high quality, young, dynamic, innovative and creative staff. Arrange and strive for the back department to reach a
ratio of below 40% in 2025 and reach 35% by the end of 2025/total number of employees. Strive for total sales staff to grow by 15% - 20% by
2026 compared to 2025. Bulld a ratio of managers to total staff that does not exceed the industry average, especially for compadnies of the
same size

Focus on organizing internal training to build standards and ethics for BMSC employees to ensure that staff are imbued with and proactively
implement the established core culture. Organize internal activities such as Youth Union, Trade Union, Women's Union, etc. to promote and
improve productivity and working spirit of employees

Develop plans and implement improvements to workers' incomes to be equal to or higher than the industry's average income. Complete in
the direction of standardization, transparency, and concretization of KPIs to link employee salary and bonus regime to business results to
improve labor productivity and business efficiency

Product and service quality improvement Building a Headquarters Relocation Plan

e Build existing product development team, improve customer Along with the Company's business orientation in the coming
service time, having a spacious headquarters to meet the growing needs

« |nnovate processes and forms, shorten transaction time to of the company as well as the best space to serve customers is a
serve customers fastest and best necessary requirement to enhance brand Image promotion and

e Prioritize digital transformation to best serve customers and commensurate with the scale of operations of the Company. The
improve business efficiency Board of Directors will develop ¢ specific plan for purchasing or

* Promote joint ventures and partnerships with commercial renting a headquarters to submit to the General Meeting of
banks, investment funds, etc. to exploit the customer Shareholders for approval

ecosystem and provide a full package of securities products
and services to customers
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i ) Activities of the Board of Directors

Member and structure of Board of Directors

In 2024, the Board of Directors of Bao Minh Securities Company
consists of 5 members

No. Full name Title

Chairman of the Board of Directors —

1 Thieu Huu Ch
kit Independent Member

Vice Chalrmean of the Board of

2 Tran Nge Phuc Bao Dirsctors

Member of the Board of Directors and

3 | PhanTan Thu General Director

4 | Hoang VanThang | Member of the Board of Directors

5 Do Van Ha Independent Board member

; Mr. Thieu Huu Chung - Chairman of the Board

of Directors " _ !
Number dnd percentage of securities ownership at Bao Minh b?
individuals, authorized representatives and their related persons:
+ Personal ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company's
charter capital
+ Representative ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital
+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital
ositions held at other companies: None

®  Mr. Tran Ngo Phuc Bao - Vice Chairman of the
= Board of Directors

Number and percentage of securities ownership at Bao Minh by
individuals, authorized representatives and their related persons:

+ Personal ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company's
charter capital

+ Representative ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

ositions held at other companies: Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Thu Duc Tourism Services Jeoint Stock Company

& Mr. Phan Tan Thu - Member of Board of Directors

See details in Section I, Item 2 Organization and Personnel

ﬁ
am Mr. Hoang Van Thang - Member of Board of Directors

Number and percentage of securities ownership at Boo Minh by
individuals, autherized representatives and their related persons:

+ Personal ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company's
charter capital

+ Representative ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

ositions held at other cormpanies: None 49



; Mr. Do Van Ha - Member of Board of Directors ‘

Mumber and percentage of securities ownership at Bao Minh by
individuals, authorized representatives and their related persons:

+ Personal ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company's
charter capital

+ Representative ownership: 0 shares, eqguivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

ositions held at other companles: Chief Executive Officer of Energy
and Investment

Engineering Services Joint Stock Company;

Investment Director of Hoang Gia Investment Group Joint Stock
Company; Director of Daewon — Hoan Cau Housing Development Joint
Venture Company Limited

)
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Activities of the Board of Directors

The current Board of Directors (BOD) consists of 05 members (including 02
independent BOD members), ensuring regulations on the structure of BOD
members

The Board of Directors regularly holds meetings to promptly resolve matters
under the Board of Directors’ authority. In 2024, the Board of Directors held 12
regular meetings. All meetings met all the conditions for conduct, dll
incumbent members attended in full egch meeting recorded specific
minutes, and after the meeting, all resolutions were issued with necessary

contents

The Board of Directors is responsible for comprehensively supervising the
Company’s operations, regularly directing and discussing with the Executive
Board in the process of implementing the Resolutions of the General Meeting
of Shareholders and the Resolutions of the Board of Directors, ensuring that
BMSC's operations dre conducted in accordance with the provisions of the

Charter, the Company's internal regulations and current legal regulations
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Documents issued by the Board of Directors in 2024

In 2024, performing the duties and powers assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors held 12 regular meetings and
issued Resolutions/Decisions to implement the following mesting contents

He“:_::;: ::t:::istun Date of issue Content Aprtl;?:ul
I 04/2024-BMSC/NQ-HBQT Fabrza.éazrg 20, gﬁaprreo;;!du; r::‘she final registration date to hold the 2024 Annual General Meeting of 100%
2 |18/2024-BMSC/NQ-HBQT May 8, 2024 | Approval of the implementation of the 2023 dividend payment plan 100%
3 20/2024-BMSC[NQ-HDQT June 4, 2024 | Approval of the last registration date for issuing dividend shares 100%
4 24/2024-BMSC/NQ-HDQT June 18, 2024 | Approval of the TPHRL PH plan for the first time in 2024 100%
5 26/2024-BMSC [NQ-HDQT June 25, 2024 fgﬁ:;ﬁ:;: Stt;:rr;geii:::ttit?rl;,;;pz%siitfw of bonds and registration of TPHRL 100%
6 | 28/2024-BMSC/NQ-HDQT July 10,2024 :H;I):hms\;c::uurf“;r:gginrgzr:: to the Charter of organization and operation of Bao 100%
7 38/2024-BMSC[NQ-HDQT Septze{l;gijer n Approval of the plan to issue BMSC private bonds, phase 2, 2024 100%
8 | 44/2024-BMSC/NQ-HBQT ”“"'25”229’ “ | short-term loan approval at Indoving Bank Ltd. 100%




Board of Directors' monitoring activities

For independent board members

e Pursuant to the provisions of Article 155 - Law on Enterprises
and Article 276 - Decree 155 detailing o number of articles of
the Law on Securities, the Company currently has 02
independent members of the Board of Directors meeting the
requirements of current law

» |n 2024, the activities of independent members of the Board of
Directors were carried out in accordance with the provisions of
the Company Charter and relevant legal documents

For Subcommittees under the Board of Directors
* Currently, the Board of Directors has two affiliated
subcommittees: the Risk Management Subcommittee and the
Internal Audit Subcommittee

» In 2024, the two Subcommitiees operated in the spirit of
independence, objectivity and honesty with the aim of
minimizing damage to the Company and customers, ensuring
that the Company's operations were smooth, continuous, safe,
accurate and effective, enhancing the ability to achieve
planned goals

For the Executive Board

The Board of Directors supervised the dctivities of the Executive Bodrd in
implementing the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the
Resolutions of the Board of Directors. The results of the supervision are as
follows:

The Executive Board closely followed the Resolutions of the Board of
Directors to implement the policies of the Board of Directors, directed and
implemented in accordance with the decentralization of authority,
inspected and operated all activities of the Company to complete the set
plan. The General Director is also a member of the Company's Board of
Directors, so the implementation of Resclutions took place guickly and
promptly

The Executive Board developed a specific and scientific plan, regularly
checked, consulted, debated, and exchanged to make timely and accurate
decisions to manage business operations. The assignment of each member
of the Executive Board was reasonable, suitable to the business conditions
of the enterprise and maximizes the management and leadership capacity
of the members

The working relationship between the Executive Boord and the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors was in accordance with the
company’s governance regulations

The Executive Board disclosed information in accordance with the law,
promptly, accurately and honestly

The Executive Board was also proactive in participating in courses to
improve professional and management skills to ensure the successful
completion of its tasks

After a year full of difficulties and challenges, the Executive Board has strived to
fulfill assigned tasks and proposed measures to improve business operations.
In the context of economic fluctuations and great market competition, this is an
achievement highly appreciated by the Board of Directors. The Company's
Executive Board manoged the Company effectively, in accordance with the law
and gained trust by the Companys employees, had good relations with
partners and fully performed its obligations to the State
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() Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors

Membership and structure of the Board of Supervisors

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors of Bao Minh Securities Company
consists of 03 members including: 01 head, 02 members

Full name

1 Nguyen Thy Phuong Head of the Board of Supervisors

Member of the Board of

2 Truong Thi Bich Ngan Supervisors

Member of the Board of

3 Moc Thi Lan Uyen :
Supervisors

; Ms. Nguyen Thy Phuong - Head of the Eourd’ 5
Supervisors

Number and percentage of securities ownership at Bao Minh by
individuals, authorized representatives and their related persons:

+ Personal ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company's
charter capital

+ Representative ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

Positions held at other companies: Member of the Board of Directors,
Vietnam - Hanei Tourism Company; Member of the Board of Directors,
Ben Tre Water Supply and Sewerage Joint Stock Company; Member of
the Supervisory Board, Lam Dong Water Supply and Sewerage Joint
Stock Company

© Ms, Moc Thi Lan Uyen - Member of the .
- Supervisors '

b

Number and percentage of securities ownership at Bao Minh by
Individuals, authorized representatives and their reldated persons:

+ Personal ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company'’s
charter capital

+ Representative ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company'’s charter capital

Positions held at other companies: None

; Ms. Truong Thi Bich Ngan - Member of the Eﬁm

Number and percentage of securities ownership at Bao Minh by
individuals, authorized representatives and their related persons:

+ Personal ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the Company's
charter capital

+ Representative ownership: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company's charter capital

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, equivalent to 0.00% of the
Company’s charter capital

Positions held at cther companies: None
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Board of Supervisors' performance in 2024

The Board of Supervisors coordinated with the Board of Directors and the Executive Board in
developing and urging the implementation of the Company's regulations and rules to create a
legal basis for the Company's business mandgement and operdtions

The Board of Supervisors conducted many activities to inspect and supervise compliance with
the provisions of the Law on Securities, the Law on Enterprises, and the Charter of BMSC's
operations in management and operdtion, specifically

g
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Reviewed the appropriateness of the declsions of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board in the management and control of the order and procedures for issuing
documents of BMSC to ensure compliance with the correct process

Participated in BMSC leadership meetings to develop regular and irregular business and
investment plans; checked and supervised the implementation of investment plans
according to strategies suitable to the current difficult economy

Reviewed periodic reports provided by the BMSC Executive Board

Monitored transactions between the Company and its related parties in accordance with
the provisions of law and the Charter

Monitored the timely disclosure of periodic and extraordinary information and verify the
authenticity of information disclosed to the Company's shareholders

Coordinated with the Executive Board to review some activities of the business units:
Securities Trading Division, Operations Division

Monitored quarterly financial reports, semi~annual financial reports = financial safety
ratio reports as well as the audited anual financial reports and financial safety ratio
reports for 2024; reviewed audit report, management letter issued by independent
auditing company, checked and corrected the Company’s shortcomings; Controlled the
process of building and implementing business plans, asset purchase investment plans,
labor, salary and income plans; Controlled the development and implementation of
internal reguldtions and rules of the company
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Board of Directors' monitoring activities

The Board of Supervisars was regularly invited to attend meetings of the
Board of Directors, through which the Board of Supervisors finds that: The
meeting format, content, meeting minutes, Resolutions, Decisions and
documents of the Board of Directors complied with the Law on
Enterprises and the Company's Charter

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 12 regular meetings to discuss and
reach consensus on decisions among its members. The Board of
Directors of the Company issued Resclutions and Decisions directing the
Company's departments on the implementation of the Company's 2024
business plan

The Board of Directors closely coordinated with the Executive Board in
the process of directing and operating and directly participates in
removing difficulties and obstacles in the company’s business
operations, on that basis to implement the 2024 business plan assigned
by the General Meeting of Shareholders

Evaluate the coordination of activities between the
Board of Supervisors, the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board

With a sense of responsibility, construction and cooperdation in the
process of operation, performing the tasks assigned by shareholders.
The Board of Supervisors consistently coordinated, exchanged and
contributed frank and honest opinions to the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board in developing the Regulations, mesting content,
Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors

The Board of Supervisors also regularly reviewed and gave opinions to
the Executive Board on management and business activities, to be

consistent with the Board of Directors’ goals and prescribed policies and
regulations

Financial accounting work

=The Company's 2024 Financial Statements and Financial Safety Indicators
Report and related documents were audited by Deloitte Vietham Auditing
Co, Ltd. The Board of Supervisors found: The audit method, applicable
accounting standards and financial accounting policies applied by the
Company as shown in the 2024 Financial Statements were appropriate. The
Board of Supervisors agreed with the figures and comments of the Auditor
In the Audit Report

Regarding the quarterly financial reports of the year: Implement monthly,
quarterly and semi-annual reports in full, meeting the content and forms

according to regulations

Regarding the preparation and submission timeline of the financial report:
the time to prepare and submit financial reports during the year in
accordance with regulations, promptly serving the Companys
management need

Financial management and control activities in 2024 were conducted as
follows:

* Accounting books and statistics were co
dccordance with the regulatio
regime.

lete, clear, and stored in




Board of Supervisors' Operation Plan for 2025

Continue to perform the task of inspecting and supervising the
activities of the Board of Directors and the Executive Board in
implementing and complying with the low and the implementation
of the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Review the structure, functions and tasks of the internal contrel and
audit department to perfect the apparatus to suit the Company's
operations

Check and supervise the implementation of the work of bullding
regulations, rules and internal manogement procedures of the
Company

Check the Company's organizational structure and |labor. Conduct
personnel appointment, labor recruitment, salary and income
payment

Check and monitor the implementation of the 2025 business plan
approved by the General Meeting of Sharsholders. Check the
implementation of statistical reports according to regulations of
Divisions/Departments regarding the timeliness and accuracy of
data

Check and monitor the implementation of the plan to balance
capital needs and cash flow plan to serve the Company's business
operations In 2025

Conduct audit of financial reports, quarterly, semi-annual and
annual financial safety indicators of the Company
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) Transactions, remuneration and benefits of the Board of Directors,

Executive Board and Board of Supervisors

Bonus, remuneration, benefits

Full name

Position

Board of Directors and Executive Board

Bonus/Remuneration (VND)

Mr. Thieu Huu Chung Chairman of the Board 1.893.600.000
Vice Chairman of the Board

Mr. Tran Ngo Phuc Bao of Dltectors /Advisor 2.952.260.018
Chief Executive Officer and

Mr. Phan Tan Thu Member of the Board of 3.853.820852
Directors

Mr. Hoang Van Thang | Member of the Board of 360.000.000
Directors

Mr. Do Van Ha independent Board Member 120.000.000

Total 9.179.680.870

Board of Supervisors
Head of the Board of

Ms. Nguyen Thy Phuong Supervisors 120.000.000

Wi Mo Thii i U | tASMbser eFtherBodra of 48.000.000
Supervisors

Ms. Truong Thi Bich Membe_fr of the Board of 48.000.000

Ngan Supervisors

Total 216.000.000

Insider Stock Trading

None

Contracts or transactions with insiders
Design and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 1.
* Type of contract: Contract for consulting on crganizing
General Meeting of Shareholders
* Relationship: Related organization of insider
* Time of transaction with the Company: March 4, 2024

Assessment of implementation of corporate
governance regulations

In 2024, the Company has strictly complied with the regulations
on Corporate Governance applicable to public companies in
Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CF dated December 31, 2020 ond
Circular 116/2020/7T-BTC of the Ministry of Finance dated
December 31, 2020 and the Charter, Governance regulations of
Bao Minh Securities Company. The Company has implemented
corporate governance according to modern governance
standards. Members of the Board of Directors and the Executive
Board have sent representatives to attend training courses and
seminars, and relevant departments have been trained and
regularly updated on new regulations on governance, corporate
governance, good practices on corporate governance in the
region and the world, updated on new regulations on enterprise
law, securities law, decrees, guiding circulars... organized by the
Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange, the Securities Depository Center,
State Securities Commission
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

3™ Flaar, Pax Sky Bullding, 344 Pham Ngoc Thach
Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Shi Minh City, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF THE GENERAL DIRECTOR

The General Director of Bao Minh Securities Joint Stock Company (the “Company”) presents this report togethar
with the Company’s financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND GENERAL DIRECTOR

The members of the Board of Directors and General Director of the Compary during the year and to the dats of
this report are as follows:

Board of Directors

Mr. Thieu Huw Chung Chairman

Mr., Tran Ngo Phug Bao Wihoe Chalrman
Mr. Da Van Ha Wember

Mr, Phan Tan Thu Mamber

Mr. Hoang Van Thang Member
General Director

Wir. Phan Tan Thu General Director
Board of Supervisors

M5, Nguyen Thy Phueng Head of the Board of Supervisors
M. Moc Thi Lan Uyen Memhber

M. Truang Thi Bich Mgan Member

THE GENERAL DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The General Director of the Company |s responsible for preparing the financial statements, which give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company & at 31 December 2024, and its finandal performance, its cash
Hows and its changes in equity for the year then snded, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
accounting regime for securities compankes and legal regulations relating to inancial reporting. In preparing these
financial statements, the General Director is reguired to:

*  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

= Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

#  State whether applicable accounting principles have been fellowed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financlal statements;

*  Prepare the financkal statements on the going concern basks unless It ks Inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business; and

»  Design and implement an effective internal contrel system for the purpose of properly preparing and
presenting the financial statements 50 &3 1o minimize errors and frauds,

The General Director |5 responsible lor ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial pasition of the Company and that the financlal statements comply
with Wistmamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime spplicable for securities companies and legal
regulations relating to financial reporting. The General Director i also respansible Tor safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frauds and other
[rreguiarithes.

neral Director confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing these

28 March 2025

ra B Daloitte Vietnam dudit Company Limited
- 1E Tire r'\::|| lreEu-qu
Deloitte mieay | ST
u MATTERS | Diserie 1. HaTr H.-ln <_I.- Wikl
wo. 0T Anzamcae ~

W eloiaE pomm fn

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To: Tha Shareholders, The Board of Directors and The General Director
8ao Minh Securities Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ban Minh Securities Joint Stock Company (the
“Company”}, prepared on 28 March 2025 as set out from page 3 ta page 38, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, the income statement, the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in
eguity for the financial year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
Information.

The General Directar *s Responsibility for the Finonclal Statements

The General Directer of the Company |5 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finantial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, sccounting regime for securities compantes and
legal regulations relating to financial reporting, and for such internal control as the General Director determines s
necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error.

Auvditor's Responsibility

D responsitility is to express an apinion an these finaneial stataments based on our audil. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing, Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requitements and plan and perform the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements o
are free from material misstatement. ~J .

An audit invalves perfarming pracedures to obtaln audit evidence about the amounts and dischosures In the financial
statemants. The procedures salected depend on the auditors” judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error. in making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal contrel relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation af the financlal
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumsiances, but net for the purpose of
expressing an opinlon on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Management, a8 well a5 evalusting the overall presentstion of the financial statements.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide 3 basis for our audit
ppininn,

Opinion y
In nurupln iy ,ri‘m_- finarcial statements giue @ true and fair wiew, In &l material respects, of the financial position of

Nguyen Tuan Ngoc

Auditar
tisifg Audit Practising Registration Certificate

Hu 0135-2025-601-1 Mo. 2110-2023-001-1

BRANCH OF DELOITTE VIETNAM AUDIT

COMPANY LIMITED

28 Morch 2025

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietaem
Dol refers to one of moee of Delcite Tauehe Tohmatzg Lirdted (TOTTL"), ity giobol metaor of me e T, and Thaeir st entries {milectoesy, the
“Deksitte crganitatian” |, OTTL be refgrred 1o 31 “Delette Global') and each of e maintwr Foms anl) tplatad st e fegally s=psiete and indepansent
antites, which canpat cbiligare of Bind euch Sthe W respect of tnimd parmes OTTL v st (V1T pridserrse e Remn andd refaieel eniiy 5 ieslsls-anly far ik o a01s
S cm o, SN not tha te of sech ot TTL dams aot pravide Servces bo clemis. Piesse see whawelonin cofma Dot 10 leain mams ﬁ[}
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT 5TOCK COMPANY FORM BO1-CTCK m BAQ MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM BO1-CTCK
34 rlaar, Pax Sky Bullding, 344 Pham Mgor Thach jssued under Clroutar No, 334/2016/TT-8TC 3" Floor, Pax Sky Bullding, 344 Pham Ngac Thach Issued under Circular No.334/2016/TT-BTC
Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam dated 27 December 2016 of Ministry of Finance - Yo ThiSau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam dated 77 December 2016 of Ministry of Finance
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ¢ ] STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {Continuad)
At ot 31 Becember 2024 As ot 31 December 2004
Unit: VND 3] Unit: VND
ITEMS Code MNotes Closing balance Opening balance =] EQUITY ode “Hiotes Chonliig:histhineh e a—
ASSETS B
A. CURRENT ASSETS {100=110-+130) 100 1,714,832,342,405  1,160,377,148,564 - C. Linbilitles (300=310+340) 200 898,102,527,112 381,483 364,108
) 01,462
I. Einanclal assets 110 1,712,060,757,468  1,152,411,455,898 1. Current liabilities : 310 879,923,650,406 372,639,501,
1. Cash and cash equivalents 111 5 506,165,636,109 243,288,666,076 = ; :;or:]:mw'wlnss and financia| leazes ::: 1.: :mﬁg 300,000,000,000
hﬂﬂd ' i ! -
;JFm mssets at fair value through profit or loss e R AR ™ 3. Short-term trade payables 3z0 379,607,546 B,745,754
(FeTPL) uz 677,726,375430  492,175,830,360 ' 4. Shart-term advances from customers 3z 825,000,000 330,000,000
3. Held-to-maturity (HTM) irvestments us 712 459,000,000,000 - | 5. Tax and other payables to the State Budget 33: 16 :ig:;:;::;: lg-m:;:
4, Loan recelvables 14 7.3 55,842,132,955 3,892,916,210 | - g- ::rm hz:nm;hi?rm o 251’&-..?55 '242:137‘233
ial assets and ; \ ’ i
:‘;;::::m:[,lmwmm TR = 3,641,652,645) 8 Short-term accrugd Bxpenses 325 17 18,277.917.855 2,505,172,950
E. Aecalvahles 117 8 13.293.673.474 370,644,465 543 " 9. Short-term unéarned revenue 27 58,333,334 58,333,334
e ) - 47,172,067,857
&1 Recelvahles and aceruols from dividend and 10. Cther short-term payables 39 18 2,529,971,600 (172,067,
Tnterest income of fimancial gesets 1171 = 370.644,455,543 ] 11, Bonus and welfare fund 331 11,373,004,436 £,305,938,094
! [ i terest
;:n::mmm o aee N ot 117.2 13,293.573,474 i 1. Non-current liabilities 240 18,178,876,706 8,843,882,642
1. Deferred Income tax Hability 386 19 18,178,876, 706 8,243,882,642
E.z.I;::cruahfnrund‘ue dividend and interest 117.4 13,203,973,474 - n
7. hdvarices to suppliers 118 32,035,500 432,500,350 _'i - D, OWMNERS' ECLLITY (400=310) 400 BE4,524,009,650 788,510,097,956
g;:e;:::h s e 8 B4, 000 00,000 ; I, Gwners' equity 410 §64,520,009,650 789,510,097,356 |
; . 171 . 45,499,379 N | 1. Share capital 411 0 711,134,250,000 £46,476,130,000
TS s & i 5 L.1. Owners' capital contribution 411.1 711,114,250,000 646, 476,130,000
Il Dther current assets 130 2,771,584,937 7,965,693,666 | a, Grdinary share carrying vating rights 41118 711,134,250,000 £46,476,130,000
1. Advances 131 20,000,000 25,000,000 2. Charter capital supplementary reserve 414 < -
2- Short-term prepald expenses 133 ‘u‘lISB?IBEll 752,241,838 l !‘H 3. Operational risk and finandial reserve 415 11,217,790,342 11,217,790,542
3. Short-tarm deposits, collaterals and pledges 134 g suujgzs:sm - 4, Undistributed profit 417 142,191,968,708 131,816,176,914
4, Takes and other receivables from the State budger 135 16 1,318,718 536 7,188,451.832 m - ﬁwmd E;;Mﬁt ;rﬁerm ::;; g;ﬁg:ﬁ g:;;;g;;::;
- mik p."ﬂ v L5
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS (200=220+250) 200 47,794,194,357 10,616,332,396 s y
™ TOTAL LIRBILITIES AN OWNERS' EQUITY 440 fz. 762 1,170,003481,060
I. Fixed assets 220 6,441,769,135 4,390,588,331 =| " {#40=300+400) e
1. Tangible flved assats 2 1w 3,892,872,173 3,316,075.633 i "~
- Cost 222 11,072,611, 668 12,771,408 068 Ak
- Accumulted depreciotion 2230 {7,173,735.435) {9,455,332,435) ™ | -
2. Intangible fixed assets 227 1 2,548 8596,962 1,074,512,698 'r‘1f X
- Cost 228 14,627,525,440 12,652,525,440 w| m ,
= Aecumulated omortizotion 22% {12,078,628,478} {11,578,012,742) - [ - ?
'f-
11, Other lang-term assets 250 41,352425.222 6,225,744,065 = "
1. Long-term deposits, collaterals and pledges 251 9 27,639,000,000 695,978,600 -~ Dang Thuy Trang Phan Tan Thu
2. Long-term prepaid expenses 452 241,874,405 606,738,364 Chief Accountant - Preparer General Director
3, Payments to Settlement Assistance Fund 254 12 5,371.550,813 4,9323,027,101 - 28 Mareh 3035
& Other lang-term assers 255 13 £,100,000,000 A :
TOTAL ASSETS (270=100+200) 270 1,762,626,536,762 __1,170,993,431,960 m
™
m
ceompanyit notes are an integral part of these finoncial storements
The gccompanying notes ore on integrol part of these finonclal stotements ™ e a grol partof ﬂ':_
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BAQ MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
3" Flgar, Pax Sky Bullding, 34A Pham Mgoc Thach
Vo Thi Saw Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

FORM BO1-CTCK

Issued under Cireular Mo 334/ 2016/TT-8TC
dated 27 December 2016 af Ministry of Finance

STATEMENT OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

As ot 31 December 2024
Unit: VND
ITEMAS Code MNotes Closing balance Opening balance
A. ASSETS OF THE COMPANY AND ASSETS MANAGED UNDER AGREEMENTS
1 Bad debts written-off (VND) 004 215 3,641,652,645 -
2. Qutstanding shares (Share) 1] 71111425 64,547,613
3. Financial assets listed/registered for
D08 247,7.20,310,000 184,115,400,000
trading at VSDC |VND) e ¥
0. Unrestricted financiol assets D081 178,720 310,000 184.115.400,000
b Martgoged financial assets o082 £9,000,000,000 -
4. Non-traded financial assets deposited at .
VSDC of the Compary (VND o fop0e
B. ASSETS AND PAYABLES UNDER AGREEMENT WITH INVESTORS
1. Financial assets lisced/registered for 7527 000
trading 3t VSDC of investors (VND) D21 13,527 467,520,000 527,399,690,
. Unrestricted [inancial ossets 0211 8,383,250,550,800 5,781,680, 460,000
b. Restricted financie assets 0212 8,722,890,000 157,000,000,000
t. Mortgaged fimanciol assets 021.3 4,212,567.500,000 1,402, 818,440,000
d. Blocked finonciol assets 0214 500.000,460.000 164,430,810,000
e. Finonciol ossets awaiting settlement D215 22,526,120,000 21,469,980,000
2 Mon-traded financial assets deposited at .
WSOC of 'rrwe:tnrs(vuﬂ_l 2 ALARIC.000
. Unrestricted and non-troded financial
el 318,220,000 =
assets depasited ot VSOC e s
3. Investors’ deposits [VND) 026 179,003,206,497 43,912,701.548
a. investars” deposits for securities trading gs 4 838 4 574,799
activities mancged by the Compony or 1 176,556,084, 1,568,074,
b. Deposits of securities IS5uers @30 21.2 Z,047,121,653 1,544,626, 749
4, Payables to investors for mvestors’
deposits for securities trading acthvities 031 213 176,956,084,838 41,968,074,799
managed by the Company [VND)
. Payobles te demestic investors for
securities troding octivities managed by the 031.1 176,556,084,838 41,968,074,720
Company
S Dhoend, bond principel i Interest. g gy 1,944,626,749
payables (VD)
b
}6}%
Dang Thuy Trang

Chief Accountant - Preparer

The occampanying nates are an integral part of these financiol statements
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
3" Floor, Pax Sky Building, 34A Pham Ngoc Thach
g Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

FORM BOZ-CTCK

Issued under Cireular No334/2016(TT-ETC
dated 27 December 2016 of Ministry ol Finance

INCOME STATEMENT
Far the year ended 31 December 2024
Unilt: VHID
ITEMS Code MNotes Current year Priar year
I, OPERATING INCOME
1.1, Gain fram financlal assets at fair value
74 308,467, 246,268
through profit o less (FTPL) “ L g
ﬁ'uf::“ 2708y Oyt v Tinsmclil s a1 224 64,315,417.416 98,315,326,432
ﬁ.wﬁgin from révaluation ef financiol ossels ot o1z 222 133,877,560,254 11,422,745,828
. Dividends and interest arising from financial
ossels are recorded at folr value throwgh profit . 013 223 16, 768,248,904 98, 728,574,008
orloss (FYTPL)
1.2, Gain from held-to-maturity (HTM] 5 35 :
Hoksrasis 02 1323 27,157,205,8
1.3. Gain from loans and other receivables LiE] 23 2,259,695,860 130,579,277
1.4. Rewenue from brokerage services 06 25,671,705,705 5,736,569,470 P
1.5. Revenue from securities investment s 265,996,250 ~ -
consulting services NG
1.6. Revenue from securities depository services 09 4 840,065,940 1,169,195,465 PH
1.7. Revenue from financial advisory services 10 16,483,185,250 5,252,845,341 oK
1.8. Revenue from other activities 11 678,099,253 707,783,008 J_'i' m
Total operating income 12 339,829
[20=01+02+03+06+08+09210+11) o ke Gk s S, =
IL. OPERATING EXPENSES
2.1. Loss from financial assets at fair value " 765,203 863
through profit or koss (FUTPL) # A I0200 LI
:'-\f:':fﬂnm revafuation af financial assels ar 211 221 9,723,152.002 £2,690,390,402
b, Transaction costs of coguisition of financial 23 7337 §7,202,585,935 60,074,813,467
ossets at FUTPL
2.2, Expenses for proprietary trading activities 26 5,741,317,597 58,292,132,001
1.3, Expenses for brokerage services 7 6,756,274,743 4,195,190,166
1.4, Expenses for securities depository services 30 2, B66, 034 Bdd 1,766,381,200
2.5, Expenses for financial advisary services 31 6,231,995,826 5,681,463,961
2.6, Other pperating expanses 31 499,785,555 B48,061,349
Total operating expenses 593 1 432 577
(80=21+26+27+30+31432} ® HEAELA AR —;;‘j‘
¥
';:Hl
&N
Yl
vi
W
55
SR
The occompanying notes are an integral port of these finonciol stotements
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e SECURITIES 1 OMNT STOCK COMPANY o m::;;*ﬂ_'tf‘:"" - BAQ MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM BO3-CTCK
3" Flmar, Pax Sky Building, 34A Pham Ngoc Thach Issued under Cireular No.334 -BTC 3 Floer, Pax Sky Bulldin S
e ) £ 344 Pham Ngoc Thach Issued under Circular No, 334/2016/TT-8TC
o ThiSau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam dated 27 December 2016 of Minlstry of Finance - Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh City, Vistnam dated 27 December 2016 of Ministry of Finance
INCOME STATEMENT [Continued) | CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024 : For the year ended 31 December 2024
Hphle 0 m (indirect method)
) Unit: YND
ITEMS Code  Motes Current year Prior year ||
gli?ﬁ:eu::’um! d interest income sl ITEMS Code Current yaar Prior year
1. Diw sl come an ’
froumdle deposits 41 590,509,635 363,638,171
Total financial income (50=42) 50 580,509,635 363,638,171 i I Cash flow from operating activities
1. Profit before tax o1 101,285,633,775 105,573,216,256
IV. FINANCIAL EXPENSES 0] 2. Adjustments for: 02 29,771,839,414 6,412,299,737
4.1, Interest expeEnses 52 45,864,173,771 5,152,224,535 - Deprisciation and amortisatien of fixed assets a3 1,609,477,229 1,613,713373
Total financial expenses (50=52) 80 23 45,864,173,771 5,152,224,535 " fn s = Pepaiitny 152,224,535
- - Galns from investing activities a7 {399,294,395) (363,638,171)
V. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE I
b ey B2 24 29,488,913 967 26,761,010,243 ™ - Acerual for Interest income o2 (17.302,517,190) -
m 3. Increase in non-manetary expenses 10 87,202,589,936 60,074,813,467
Vi, OPERATING PROFIT - Revaluatian loss of financlal assets recognized at lair
70 58,532,451 946 97.486,210,645 11 7 585,836 60,074, 813,467
(70=20+50-40-60-62) e ~ | | value through profit/iess (FUTPL) M '
ey § I 560, 11,422,74
VIl. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES N - 4 mlnu n nun—nmnat:wi?:m " 18 [133,877,560,254) {111,422, 5.52\3]
T.1. Other Income 71 25,1 2,997,029,247 8,440,659,843 - Revaluation gains on financial assets recognized at 10 (1233,877,560,254] #1110‘23-?'5:3‘2%]
7.2. Other expenses 72 5.2 (243,847,418} {353,654,232) = fair value through profit/loss (FVTPL) |
Total other operating profit (B0=T1+72) BO 2,753,181,829 8,087,005,611 . Loss from operations before changes in working e 193 168,235,563
- apitel 30 (354,484,169,201) (193,168,235,632)
-Cha in financial assets recognized through
Vi, PROFIT BEFORE TAX (90=70+80] 90 101,285,633,775 105,573,216,256 " pruﬂ‘:":‘:;s EVTPL g E3 S (138,875,574,132) 40,257,738,71
8.1, Realired profit a1 54,610,663,457 54,225,283, 895
8.2 Unrealized profit a2 46,674,970,318 51,347,932,361 | - Changes inheld--meturty (HMTMfinuestments. B2 (459,000,000,000)
- Changes In short term bormowings 33 {55,591,460,380) (172,088,
i, CORPORATE INCOME TAX [CIT} = . Changes in receivables and accrued dividends,
1 1 21,541,762,870 36 653,008,259 4,482
EXFENSES -’ * TAIRIBAT izl - interest on financial assets =N R2.m &
9.1. Current CIT expenses 100.1 10,413, 779,065 11,272,176,333 - Changes in receivables for services provided by the
8.2, Deferred tax expenses 100.2 5,334,994,064 10,269,585,472 & S a ¥ 37 116,396,000 10,000,000
- ivables 34 37,208,350,784 (65,551,165,879)
N. PROFIT AFTER TAX (200=50-100) 200 81,536,860,646 53,031,453,386 Chnges. In-oches recs
. - Changes in other assets 40 |26,991,080,262) 5,743,913,239
W1, EARNINGS PER SHARE 500 - Change in accruals (excluding Interest expenses) 41 (683,821,204} 56,322,649
12.1. Earnings per shiare [VND/share) 501 1,099 = - Changes in prepaid expenses 42 375,217,088 811,447,527
| - Corporate income tax paid 43 [4,544,045,769) (5,362,954,880)
100 0 - Interest paid 4 (29,407,607,662)
i win| B - Change In payables 45 370,861,792
/-' ; ‘-:;; - Changes to employee benefit deductions 46 (3,435,990,578)
E:' / e ~ - Changes in taxes and amounts payahle to the State P 6,579,453,202)
I'NA |excluding corparate income tox paid)
-TE; = - Changes in payable to employess a8 2,540,134,532
- — o - Changes in other payables 50 [44,642,096,257)
BegTany s gl Net cash used in operating activities 80 {270,101,666,330)
Chief Accountant - Preparer General Director ﬁ
28 Moref 2025 Il. Cash flows from investing activities
n 1. Acquisition and construction of fived assets £1 {5,275,000,000)
2. Peaceeds from disposal and sale of fixed assets tia 2,013,636,363
] 3, Imterest eamed, dividends and profits recelved BS - 363,638,171
- Net cash used in investing activitles 70 (3,261,363,637) {126,763,328)
The occompenying nates are on lntegral pori of Hrut,ﬁ‘fﬂnc? ial statements - e aceomamYinG NONes ars M integeol port of these fvonciel shitements
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BAOC MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
3" Floor, Pak Sky Bullding, 344 Pham Ngoc Thach
o ThiSau Ward Distrier 3, He Chi Minh City, Vistnam

FORM BO3-CTCK

Issued under Creular he. 234 2016/TT-8TC

dated 27 December 2016 of Ministry of Finance

CASH FLOW STATEMENT [Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

findirect method)
Unit: VHD
ITEMS Code Current year Priar year
ill, Cash flows from financing activities

1. Cash from loan and bond principal 73 2,873,860,000,000 1,134, 000,000,000
2. Loan principal repayment 74 (2,337,620,000,000} (234,000,000,000)
Net cash generated by financing activities BO 5386,240,000,000 300,000,000,000
IV. Net Increase in cash 30 262,876,970,033 167 342,584,171
) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning s pon ¢ 75,946,081,905

of the year !
-Cazh 1011 243, 288,666,076 75,946,081,905
Vi.Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 103 506,165,636,109 243, 288,666,076
- Cash 103.1 506,165,626,109 243,288,.666,076

The accempanying notes ore on integraf part of these finonciol stotements

BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

3" Floar, Pax Sky Building, 344 Pham Ngoc Thach
‘a Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

FORM B03-CTCK

Issued under Circular No.334/2016/TT-87TC
dayed 27 December 2016 of Ministry of Finance

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
{Direet methed)

Unit: VD
CASH FLOWS FROM BROKERAGE AND TRUST ACTIVITIES OF CUSTOMERS
MEMS Code Curent year Prior year
I Cash flows from brokerage and trust activities of customars
1. Receipts from disposals of brokerage
e 01 6,054,139,025,671 1,885,731,156,663
2, Paymenits for purchases of brokerage 508,157 3
Sicas St bR 02 (6,550,587,407,594) (2,508,157,734,933)
3. Receipts for eustomers” securities 3
e e a7 671,436,391 962 471,631,024,786
4, Proceeds from the Securities lssuers 14 1,281,298,295,281 25,452,386,732
5. Payment ta the Securities Issuers 15 (1,231,195,800,371) (25,469,104,652)
Het Increase f(decrease] in cash
during the year 20 135,090,504, 949 [50,812,271,404)
II. Cash and cash equivalénts of customers at 7 52
the BaginAing of tha yaar E ] 43,812,701, 548 94,724,972,9
Cesh in hanks n the baginning of the year n 43,912,701,548 84,724,972,952
- Investors” depasits monoged by the 52,510, 8
Couripaiti Jorsacyritieg sitis 32 41,269, 143,658 2,510,653,82,
- Deposits of securities Issuers 35 2,643,557,850 2,214,279,124
IIl. Cash and cash equivalents of customers 13 700,543
atthe end of the year (40s20+30) 40 173,003,206,497 43,812,701,
Cash in banks in the end of the year a1 173,003,206, 497 43,912,701,548
- Investors" deposits monoged by the i i
Comipony fir securities 1 y 42 175,956,084,838 1,268,143,
- Deposits af securities issuers 45 2,047,121,659 2,643,557,850

3

Dang Thuy Trang Phan Tan Thu
Chief Accountant - Preparer General Directar
28 Maorch 2025

The accompanying notes.are an integro! part of these fnoncial statements
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM BO3-CTCK
3™ Flaar, Pas Sky Building, 384 Pham Ngoc Thach Issued under Clrowlar Mo, 334/ 2016/TT-BTC
Vo Thil Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Clty, Vietnam dated 27 December 2016 of Ministry of Finance

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Uinit: VHD
ITEMS Opening balance Increase/Decrease Closing balance
1lanuary 2023 1 January 2024 Previous year Current year 31 December 2023 31 December 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
I. Changes in owner's equity
1. Share capital (Note 20} 609,853,750,000 646,476,130,000 36,582 380,000 - &4,638,120,000 - 645,476,130,000  711,114,150,000
"m’:,:'::':‘““"m""““ 609,893,750,000 646,476,130,000 36,582,380,000 - 64638,120,000 - GMGATEI0000  711,114.250,000
. vl 5
ey 23,900,085,471 . - 23,900,085,471 - s 3 =
supplementary reserve
% Garationsl ik mmd . : 17,790,942  11,217,790,942
23,900,085471 11,217,790.942 - 12,682,394,579 11,217,790, 217,790,
financial reserve )
4, Undistributed profit £3 666,025,265 131,816,176,914 177,163,673,525 99,014421,876 138 881,693,392 128 505,901,558 131,816,176,914 142,191,968,708

4.1 Realized profit after tax 50,365, 740,584  56,440,645,344 B8,025476,863 S0,954,571,103 54338435361 81302619821 56,440,646, 344 59,476,451, 884
4.2 Unrealized [loss]/profit {5.702.815,318)  35,375,510,570 89,138 196,662 d4E058,850,773 B4,543, 258031 47203281777 35,375,530,570 72,715,506,824

711,360,846,207 789,510,097 856 213,745,053,525 135,596,801,876 203,519,813,392 128,505,901,558  789,510,097,856 864,524,009,650

The accompanying notes are an fntegral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
For the yeor ended 31 December 2024

According to the Resolution No. 16/2024-BMSC/NQ-DHDCD ["Resolution 16°) dated Agril 23, 1024, the General
Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company approved the appropriation of after-tax profit for 2023 as follows:

Appropriation to the bonus and welfare fund at 5% of after-tax profit, equivalent to YND 4,201,572,66%. In
2023, the Company appropriated the bonus and wellare fund &t 5% of after-tax profit, equivalent to YND
4,201,572,669.

Appropriation to the customer reward fund at 2% of after-tax profit, equivalent to WND 1,680,629,068. In
2023, the Company appropriated the customer reward fund at 2% of alter-tax profit, equivalent to VND
1,680,629,068,

Stock dividend issuing at rate of 10%, eguivalent to WND 64,638,120,000 (6,463,812 shares), On July 25, 2024,
tha Hanol Stock Exchange approved the dedsion to change the registration of trading for the shares issued
as dividend payment at a 10% rate, in accordance with the sbove-mentioned Resolution 16.

Additionally, according to the Resolution 16, the Gereral Shareholders” Meeting of the Company approved the
proposed appropriation of after-tax profit for 2024 as fallows:

Appropriation to the banus and welfare fund at 63 of after-tax profit. Based on the degree of complation of
the profit target for the year, the Company has temporarily appropriated the bonus and welfare fund at 6%
of after-tax profit, equivalent to VND 4,892,211,639,

Appropriation to the custemar reward fund at 2% of after-tax profit. Based on the degree of completion of
the profit target Tor the year, the Company has temporarily appropriated the customer reward fund at 23 of
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These nates are an integral povt of and should be read in confunction with the eccompanying financiol statements

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Structure of ownership

Bao Minh Securities Joint Stock Company is a joint stack eompany established in Vietnam under the
License for Establishment and Oparation Mo. 90/UBCK-GP dated 21 Aprll 2008 Issved by the State
securitles Commission and the latest adjusted Establishment and Dperation License Mo, B5/GPDC-UBCK
dated 20 August 3024,

The company is registared 1o trade shares on the UPCoM market at the Hanol Stock Exchange with the
stack code of BMS, according to the Decision No. 492/QD-SGDHN dated 01 August 2018. As of 31
December 2024, the Company's approved charler capital s WND 711,118,250,000 (a3 of 31 December
2023 VND 646,476,120,000).

The total number of employess of the Company as at 31 December 2024 was 40 (as at 31 December
2023: 38),

The Company’s head office is located at 3 Flaor, Pax Sky Building, 34A Pham fgoc Thach, Vo Thi Sau
\Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh City, Vietnam .

Charter of Company
The Compary's charter was issued on 10 July 2024,
Operating industry and principal activities

The principal activitles of the Company are securities brokerage service; securitles trading, securities

o -
aftar-tax profit, equivalent to VND 1,630,737,213. Issuance guarantes; securlties depository and securities Investment consulting. ?
Appropriation oparating budget (salaries, bonuses, benefits and ather expanses) of the Board of Directors JHG
and the Board of Supervisors at 5% of pre-tax profit, but no less than YD 4.6 billion, Narmal business cycle ch ;:

The Company’s normal business cycle is carried out for a time period of 12 months or less. ‘-'“"{HO I
The final figures far the distribution of the 2024 business results will be approved by the Company's shareholders at ,\E’\T
the Annua| General Meeting in 2025, Investment restrictions of the Company {
The Company complles with Article 28 of Gircular No. 121/2020/TT-BTC dated 31 December 2020 —
{“Article 28 Circutar 121) Issued by the Minlstry of Finance prescribing operation of securities companies
/’ and applicable regulations on investment restrictions. The current restrictions on Investment are 45
1 Tollowes:
7,4 o 1. A securities company is not allowed to purchase, contribute capital to invest in real-estate
imvestment except far the purpose of using the real estate as head office, branch, and transaction
offices directly serving professional business activities of the securities cempany, ,.,:;".
E
ot ibiton PHbE Pory T 2 A securities company may purchase, contribute capital to invest in investment properties under \' e
e imantant upaer Symatel Mooty Clause 1 of this Article and fixed assets on the principle that the carrying value of fixed asseis and Sor
28 March 2025 investment properties should not exceed fifty percent (50%)] of total assets of the securilies B
company. \:
3, Asecurities company is not allawed to wse more than seventy percent (70%) of its owners’ equity to ‘:\{é
imvest in corparate bonds, & securities company, lleensed to engage in securities trading, i allowed
ta repurchase listed bonds In sccordance with relevant regulations on securities repurchase
agreement.
4, A securities company must nat by itself, or authorize another entity or individuls ta:
al Invest In shares or contribute capital 1o companies that own mare than fifty percent {50%) of the
charter capital of the securities company, except for purchasing odd shares per reguest of
customers;
The occompanying noles are on infegral port of these finonciol stalements
12 13
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Continued)

FORM BOS-CTCK

b]  Make joint investmants with a refated party in five pereent (S%) er more of the charter capital of
ancther securities company;

¢ Invest in more than twenty percent (20%) of the total eireulating shares or fund certificates of a listed
entity;
Imyest in more than fifteen percent (15%) of the total clrculating shares or fund certificates of & non-
listed entity, This provision shall not apply to member fund, exchange-traded fund and open-ended
fund certificates;

d) Invest or contribute capital In more than ten percent {10%) of the tetal centributed capital of &
limited llability company or a business project;

e} Invest or contribute more than fifteen percent (15%) of its owners' equity In an entity or a busingss
project;

i Invest more than seventy percent [70%) of its awners’ equity In shares, capital contribution and
business projects; specifically Invest more than twenty percent [20%) of its owners’ equity in non-
lIsted shares, capital eantribution and business projects.

5. Asecurities company Is allowed to establish, acquire o fund management company as a subsidiary,
In this case, the securities company (s not required to camply with the regulation of points ¢, d and
¢ of Clause 4 of this Article. A securities company that plans to establish or acquire & fund
management company as & subsidiary must meet the following tonditions:

a) Eaulty after contributing capital to establish or acquire of a fund managernent company must be at
lemst equal to the charter capital for business operations the company is performing:

b) The capital liquidity ratic after contributing capital lo establish or acquire a fund management
company must be at least one hundred and eighty percent {180%);

¢} after contributing capital to establish or acquire a fund management company, § sacurities company
must engure tompliance with debt restrictions specified In Artide 26 and [nvestment resirictions
specified in Clause 3 and Point € Clause & of this Article,

6 Where any securities company makes nvestments in excess of the prascribed limit due to its
underwriting In the form of firm commitment, consolidation, merger or any change in assels or
#quity of the securities company or capltal contributors, it must take necessary actions to comply
with the limits specified in Clauses 2, 3 and 4 of this Article fora maximum perlod of one (01) year.

Disclosure of information comparability in the financial statements

Comparative figures aré the figuras of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION AND FINANCIAL YEAR
Accounting convention

The Company applies the accounting regime sppliceble (o securites companies issued by the Ministry of
Finance in accordanca with Clrcelar Mo, 210/2014/TT-BTC dated 30 December 2014 ("Cireular 2107},
amendments and supplemante under Circular 07/2016/TT-BTC dated 18 January 2016 {“Circular 07*] and
Circular No, 334/206/TT-BTC dated 27 December 2016 |"Clrcular 334") amending, supplementing and
replacing Annex 02 and Annex 04 of Circular 210 providing guidance on accounting policy applicable to
spcurities companies, These Circulars set out regulations related to accounting documents, accounting
account system as well a5 methods of preparing and presenting flnancial statements. of securities

companies,

The accompanying financlal statements, enpressed In Vietnam Dong (VND), are prepared under the
histarical cost convention and In accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime
for enterprises and legal regulatians relating to finandal reporting.

The accompanylng financial siatements are net intended to present the financial position, résults of
operations, cash flows snd changes in equity In accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepred in countries and jurisdistions ether than Vietnam.

Accounting year

The Company's financlal year begins on 1 January and ends an 31 December.
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continuad)

FORM B09-CTCK

ADOPTION OF NEW GUIDANCE
Circular No. 68/2024/TT-BTC dated 18 September 2024

On 18 September 2024, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 68/2024/TT-BTC |"Circular 68")
regulating the amendments and supplements to several articles of the circulars on securities transactions
on the securities trading system; securities clearing and settlement; the operations af securities
companies; and information disclosure on the securities market. Circular BB has taken effect from 2
November 2024,

New guidance In Issue but not yet effective
Law No, 56/2024/QH15 doted 29 November 2024

On 23 November 2024, the National Assembly of Vietnam issued Law Mo, 56/2024/QH15 ("Law 56%)
included amending Law on Securitles. Law 56 takes effect from 1 January 2025, sxcept for certain
provisions effective from 1 April 2025 and 1 January 2026.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting palicies, which have been adopted by the Company In the preparation of these
financial statements, are as foflows:

Estimates

The preparation of finandal statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting
regime applicable for securities companies and legal regulations relating to financial reporting requires
the General Director to make estimates and assumptions that affect the raported amounts of assets,
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabliities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Although these accounting
estimates are based on the General Director's best knowbedge, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, cashin transit and short-term, highly
liquld Investments [not exceeding 3 months] that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value,

Cash deposited by customers far securities trading are presented on the off-balance sheet.

cash in banks for securitles chearing and settiement is the amount available in place to clear aff or settle
securities transactions at Vietnam Securities Depositary and Clearing Corparation,

Financial assets ot falr value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financizl assets at Fair value through profit or loss comprise financial assets held for business purposes,
or at the time of initial recognition of identified financial assets that would be more reasonably presented
if elassified as finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets recorded through profitfloss are recorded at the original price as the actual purchase
price or the purchase order matching price and are re-evaluated @t thie market price or falr value on the
Company's Statement of Financial Position. Revaluation differences arising will be recorded |n revenue
orexpenses fram FYTPL's financial assets on the Company’s income statement.

Costs for purchasing FYTPL financial assets are recorded as ransaction costs for purchasing main financial
as5ets on the Income statement as spon as they are incurred. Upon sale, the cost of finandal assets (s
recognized through profit/loss determined according 1o the weighted average method al the tirne of sale.
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The decrease in the difference fram the revalustion of finandal assets recognized through profit or logs
at market value compared to the previous period is recorded in the Income Statement under the item
"Decrease in revaluation of financial assets recognized through prefit or loss® The Increase In the
difference from the revaluation of financial assets recognized through profit or Inss at markes value
compared to the previeus perled 5 recarded in the Income Statement under the item "Increase in
revaluation of financial assets recognized through profit or loss.”

Held-to-Maturity ("HTM®) Investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments that the Company has the posidve intention and ability to hold until maturity,
except for non-derivative financial assets classified as financial assets measured at fair value through
profitorloss [FYTPL), available-for-sale (4FS) financlal assets, or non-derivative financial assets that meat
the definition of loans and receivabjes.

HTM financial assets are initially recognized at cost (the purchase price of the asset plus {+) any
transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of these flnancial assets, such as brokerags fees,
transaction fees, [ssuance agency fees, and bank fees|. After initial recegnition, HTM financlal assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The amortized costof HTM investments is determined by the Initial carrying amount of the financal asset,
minus (<) any principal repayments, plus {+) or minus {-) the cumulative amortization of the differenca
betwean the initial carrying amount and the maturity valee, less any impairment |osses or amounts
cons|dered Irrecoverable [if any).

The effective interest methed 15 a methed of aliocating interest income or interest expenae over the
relevant period for @ financial asset or a group of HTM investments.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows expected 1o
be paid or recelved throughout the expectad life of the Anancial instrument, or, if applicable, aver a
sharter period, ta the net carrylng amount of the financlal asset or lisbility.

Investments are assessed for impaliment at the reporting date. A prevision Is made for HTM Investments.
when there Is objective evidence Indicating that the investment Is impaired or is likely to be
unrecsverable due to one or more lass events that adversely affect the expected future cash flows of the
held-to-maturity Investments, Objective evidence of impairment may include the market value/fair value
{if available} of the impaired debt, signs of significam financial difficulties ef the debtor or group of
debiors, defaults or delays In payments of interest or principal, potential bankruptcy of the debtor,
financial restructuring, and observable data indicating a measurable reduction in expectad future cash
flows, such as changes in repayment terms or finaneial conditions related to default risk. When there 15
evidence of impairment, the pravision is calculated based on the difference between the amortized cost
and the falr value at the assessment date. Any Increase or decrease in thie provision balance is recognized
in the income statement under the item “Provision for financial asset impairment, handling bad debts,
financial asset Impalrment lasses, and borrewing easts of laans.”

Available-for-zale |AFS) financial assets

awallable-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as avaltable-for-
sale or are not classified as (oans and recelvables, HTM, nor FUTPL.

awvallable-for-sale financial assets are recognized inltially 8t cost (acquisition cost of the assets plus (+)
transaction casts which are directly attribute to the purchase of the financial assets). After initial
recognition, Avallable-for-sale financial assets are subsaquently measured at fair value at the statement
of finaneial position date; exespt far financial assets that are equity Instruments that do not have a listed
price in an market and Investments whose valug cannol be determined refiably, available-for-sale
financial assets continue to be recarded at cost.
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Losrys

Loans are made In the form of loan margin lending or loan advanced from securities sales proceeds,
Accordingly, investors with securities aceaunts at the Company will be able to use the credit limit grantod
by the Campany to buy shares and mortgage shares as eollaterals for the loan.

Loans are subjecied to impairment assessment at the reporting date. Frovision Is made based on
estimated oss which s determined by the difference between the market value of securities used as
collaterals for such loan and the outstanding loan balance. Any increass/decrease in the balance of
provision I recorded n "Provision expenses for financial assets, write-off of doubtful receivables,
impairment lasses of financial assets and harrowing cost of loans” In the income statement,

investment cooperation contract

Imvestment Cooperation Contract mesns a cooperation contract between two or more ventures in order
to carry aut specific business activities, but it does not require establishment of a new [egal entity, These
investment Cooperaticn Contracts are accounted based on the nature of each Investment Cooperation
Contract in accordance with pravailing sccounting t!ﬁuhﬂﬂm.

Pravisian for impalrment of financial assets

Financial assets are considered for possible impairment at the end of the financial year.

Provision is made for impairment af marketable financial assets at the balance sheet date corresponding
to the difference between book value and actual market value at the date of the most recent transaction
but not more than one month from the date of provision according to current regulations applicable to
securlthes companies. An increase or decrease in the provision account batance |s recorded In the income
statement under the item “Provision expenses for financlal assets, handling of losses of uncollectible
receivables, Impairment Insses of financial assets and the borrowing costs of the loans®.

Market/fair price of securities is determined on the Tollowing basis:

+ The market value of securities listed an the Hanai Stock Exchange and Ho Chi Minh ity Stock Exchange
Is the closing price an the maost recent transaction date up to the date of re-evaluation.

+ For securities of companies that are net listed on the stock exchange but are registered for trading on
the Unlisted Public Company Market (UPCol), the market value is determined as the average reference
price of the last 30 consecutive trading days prior to the date of re-evaluation, as published by the Stock
Exchange.

+ For listed securities that are canceled or suspended from trading or are stopped fram trading from the
Friday trading day onwards, the actual stock price is the book value a1 the date of the most recent
financial position statement,

+ For securities that have not yet been lsted and not reglstered for trading on the trading market of
unlisted pubfic companies {UPCoM), the actual securities prices on the market s a basis for re-evaluation
are the average prices of the actual trading prices according ta the quotations of three (03) securities
companies trading at the time closest to the time of re-evaluation but not mare than one month from
the date of re-evalustion,

+ Securities without reference prices from the above sources will be assessad for the possibllity and

extant of price reduction based on the consideration af the financial situation and book value of the
Issuer at the balance sheet date.
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Accounting principles for recognizing mortgaged investments
During the year, the Campany had investments pledged/mortgaged to fulfill 1ts financlal abligatians.

According to the terms and conditions of the pledge/mortgage agreement, during the term of the
sgreement, the Company is not allowed te use the pledged/mertgaged assets for sale, transfer, entering
into repurchase agreements, or swap agreements with any third party

In the event that the Company falls 1o meet its payment obligations, the pledgee/morigagee has the right
to use the pledged/mortgaged assets to settle the Company’s obligations after a specified period In the
pledpe/mortgege agreement, starting fram the date the Company’s payment abligation averdug,

The pledged/mortgaged assets are recorded on the financial position statement in accordance with the
classification of the underlying assets,

Receivables

Debt receivables are the amount of money that can be recovered by customers or other parties;
Receivables are presented according to the book value minus provisions for bad debts,

Pravizions for bad debts is appropriated for recelvables that are six months or more overdue, or
recebeables that the debtor ks unable to pay due to liquldation, bankneptoy or similar difficulties.

Tangible fived assets and depreciation

Flxed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of a fived asset comprises of its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the fixed asset to working condition for its
intended use,

Depreciation of tangible assets are computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
these assets as follows:

Current years
Machineries and eguipment 3.7
Motor vehicles 35
Office equipment 1-6

Galns and |osses arising from the liguldation or sale of assels are the differ ence between the net proceeds
from the disposal and the carrying amount of the assets and are recorded in the income statament.

Leasing

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the leasing
company are accounted for a5 aperating leases. Aentals payable under aperating leases are charged to
the income statement on a stralght-line basls over the term af the relevant lease.

Intangible assets and amort/zation

Intangible assets precent the value of software, |s measured al historical cost less accumulated
amaotization. The software is amortized using a straight-line method over an estimated useful life from
three to eight years.

Long-term prepayments

Prepaid expenses include security devices and cther prepaid expenses that are expected to provide
future economic benefits to the Company for 01 year ofr more. These expenses are capitalized as long-
term prepayments and are allocated to the income statement on 3 straight-line basis over two or three

YEars.
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Issued bonds
The Company issues regular bonds for the purpose of ralsing short-term capital.

The book value of the bonds is usually reflected on a net basis, which Is the bond's face value minus -}
the band discount plus [+) the bond premium,

Revenue racognition
Securfties investmeant and copitel contribution activities

Revenus from securities investment and capital contribution activities includes the difference in Interast
fram the sale of proprietary securities of the Company {recorded based on the Natice of dearing results
of securities transactions of the Securities Depository) and stock income revenues, interest on bonds,
revenue from capital contribution activities of joint ventures and assocations (profits from stock
investment and profits from capital contribution activities of joint ventures and assoc/ations are recorded
in the report of operating results when the Company has the right to receive Interast; interest on bond
investment Is recorded n the Income statemeant on an accrual basis).

Interest on held-to-malurity invesiments

Thie revenue from Interest on term bank deposits |s recarded in the income statement on an accrual
basks, determined on the balance of depesit accounts and the applicable interast rate,

Interest on foons and receivables

Profit revenue earned from margin trading and advance activities to investors is recorded in the income
statement on an accrual basis,

Securities brakeroge activities for investors
Revenue from securltles brokerage activities shall be recorded In the income statement upon actual

receipt.
Consultancy activities

Revenue from consultancy activities s recorded in the income statement of the financlal year when the
service has been provided, the revenue is determined with relative certainty and the costs incurred for
the transaction and the cost to complete the transaction of providing such services is determined.

Securities depository activities

Revenug fom secur|lies depository activities lof investon s recorded in the income statement upon
actual receipt.

Cther income

Other revenues including Income from intersst on deposits at the Payment Support Fund shall be
recorded In the income staternent on an accrual basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised In the income statement in the year when incurred unless they ane
capitalised In accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 16 "Bomowing costs".

Forgign currancies

Transactions arising in forelgn currencies are translated at exchange rates rufing at the transaction date.
The balances of monetary items denominated (n forelgn currencies a5 at the balance sheat date are
retrapslated ot the exchange rates of commercial bank where the Company usually transacts on the same
date. Exchange differences arising from the translation of these accounts are recognised in the income
statement.
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Payable provisions

Payable provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
and it Is probable that the Company will be reguired ta settle that abligation. Provisions are measured at
the General Directar's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation as atthe balance
sheet date.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payabie and deferred tax,

The tax currently payable (s based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from profit before
lax as reporied in the income statement because It excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other periods {including loss carried forward, if any) and it Further exclides items that
are never tavable or deductible

Deferred tax is recognised on significant differences between carrying amounts of assets and labilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit
and is accounted for using balance sheet liability method, Deferred tax liabllities are generally racognised

Dividend distribution

The Company's declared dividend Is recognized as an amount payable in the financial statements of the
financial year in which the dividend s approved at the General Meeting of Shareholders (except for
dividends pald In shares, which are recorded when the actual payment of shares incurs).

Business segment report

A division is a separately dentifiable companent of the Company that engages in the provision of services
and Investments (division by operation), or the provision of services and lavestments in a specific
ecenomle environment [division by geegraphical regien), Each of these parts takes risks and obtains
benefits that are different from the others. The basic template of division report of the Company Is based

on division by sctivity.

Segment Information s prepared and presentad in accordance with the accounting policies applicable
to the preparation and presentation of the Company's financial statements for the purpose of helping
users of finandial statements to understand and evaluate the Company’s operation comprehensively.

for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that S CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

£ . Closing balance Opening balance
Deferred tax iz calculated at the Lax rates that are expected to apply In the yeer when the liabiity is settied VND wND
or the asset realised. Deferrad tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when It relates to items
charged or creditad directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax s alsa dealt with In equity. Cash on hand e, 130 217,620,089

Cash at banks for the operatlon of the Company 506,069,820,970 243,071,045 987

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legaily enforceable right to set off current tax 506,165,636,109 243,288,666,076
assets against current tas labilities and when they relate to income tases levied by the same tax suthority
and the Company intends to settle 15 current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. £ TRADING VALUE AND VOLUME DURING THE YEAR

The determination of the tax currently payable s based on the current Interpretation of tax regulations.

Howaver, these regulations are subject to perlodic varlation and thelr ultimate determination depands Volume of trading Value of trading
on the resuits of the tax authorities’ sxaminations, during the year during the year
Other taxes are paid in accordance with the prevalling tax laws in Vietnam, Quantity VHD
The Company 176,724,396.72 11,536,388,719,820
Owmer's equity Srocks and Bonds 171,625,114 11,472,477,855,820
Fund cerificates 5,099,282.72 §3,910,860,000
Contributed Capital refers to the capital contributed from share issuance, recorded in the charter capital
account at par value. The investors 730,263,374 12,751,018,478,310
Stocks and Bonds 730,263,374 12,751,018,478,310
Retained Earnings include both realized and unrealized profits, 906,987, 770.72 24,287,407,198,130

Unrealized Prafit for the accounting period Is the difference between the total revaluation gains and
losses of financial assets recognized through profit or loss o other items Incduded In the income
statement of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which belong te the financial asset partfalio, and
the deferred corperate income tax liability reiated to the revaluation increase aver the original cost of
financlal assets recognized through profit ar loss (FYTPL) or other categories of the Company.

Realized Profit for the accounting period is the difference between total revenue and income and total
expenses recorded in the Company's Statement of Incame, excluding amounts already recognized as

unrealized profit.

Reserves

According to Circutar No. 114/2021/TT-BTC dated 17 December 2021 issued by the Ministry of Finance,
raserves established In accordance with the declsions of the General Shareholders' Meeting with the
purpose of ensuring that the financial safety ratlo is met as prescribed by tegal regulations on securities.
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM BO9-CTCK
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7. FIMAMNCIAL ASSETS
71 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
Closing balance Opening batance
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
VND VND UND ViND
Listed stocks and stocks traded on UPCoM 245,231,279,205 335,999,670,231 246,254,494,368 290,473,907,580
- NAB i) 113,911,988,716 162, 397,205,850 117,060,176,290 117,440,165,150
- DB fii} 114,295,655,000 162,115,200,000 - .
-7 13,002,307,006 10,287,026,000 13,002,307,006 12,013,197,000
- Eig 002,290,244 LO51,673,700 116,039 198,525 160,85 7,851,000
Others 115040239 128,564,681 152,812,547 162,694,430
Unlisted and unregistered traded stocks 157,689,852,695 157,689,852,695 1,923,400 1,923,400
Money market instruments 120,000,000,000 120,000,000,000 - -
Term deposit 10, 0, D, 0 100,000,000,000 - .
Deposit certificate (i) 20,000,000,000 20,000,000,000 - -
Fund certificate (iv) 63,910,860,000 64,036,852,504 - -
Unlisted bonds - - 201,700,000,000 201,700,000,000
586,831,991,500 677,726,375,430 447 ,956,417,7638 492,175,830,980

[i} As presented in Note 14, including 6,900,000 stocks of Nam A Commerdial Joknt Stock Bank with a market value as at 31 December 2024 of VND 110,055,000,000 used to secure short-term
loans at Vietnam Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank - HCM Branch.

[ii} Represents 2,814,500 stocks of Binh Dinh Pharmaceutical - Medical Equipment Joint Stock Company = an entity related to insider, which the Company purchased during the year through
prder matching and negotiation method

(ill) Deposit certificate at Vietnam Jeint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development |"BIOV™) blocked to secure an overdralt [oan as agreed in the overdraft limit agreement
between the Company and BIDV.

{iv) Represents 2,899 868.82 fund certificates of Lighthouse Bond Fund and 2,199,413.9 fund certificates of Lighthouse Capital Oynamic Fund - an entity retated to insider, which the Company
purchased during the year through order matching method through VSDC,

LS|
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BAD MINH SECURITIES 10INT 5TOCK COMPANY FORM BOS-CTCK
NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

72 Held-to-maturity (*HTM" ]} investments

Closing balance Opening balance
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
VND VHE VHD VND
Unlisted bands 359,000,000,000 359,000,000,000 = -
Listed bonds 100,000,000,000 100,000,000,000 - -
459,000,000,000 459,000,000,000 * =

Held-to-maturity investments {“HTM") include unlisted bonds and listed bonds of credit institutions with original terms fram 08 years to 07 years, Interest rates from 7.45% p.ato 7.7% p.a.
As presented in Note 14, bonds of credit institutions with carrying amount as at 31 Decernber 2024 of VND 360,000,000,000 are used to secure short-term loans at Yietnam Thueng Tin
Commercial Jaint Stock Bank - HOM Brandh,

7.3 Loans receivables

Clasing balance Opening balance
Cost Provision Fairvalue Corst Provision Fair value
WND VHD WND ViND VND VHD
Loan receivables from margin activities (%) 22,955,780,708 » 12,956,780, 704 3,641,652,645 3,641,652,645 =3
Loan advanced from securities sales proceeds (**) 32,685,352,247 - 32,885,352,247 250,663,565 - 250,663,565
Loans receivables £5,842,132,955 - 55,842,332, 955 3,892,316,210 3,641,652,645 250,663,565

[*} Loans receivable from margin activities

Loans recaivahle from margin activities are the balance of lsan principzl of margin trading contracts, The investor's securities participating in margin trading are held by the Company
a5 collateral for this boan of the Investor with the Company. As at 31 December 2024, the par value of securities as pledges for margin loans (s YND 7,000,000,000, the market value
of securities as collateral for term loans is VND 44, 380,000,000,

[**) Loans advanced from securities sales proceeds

Advance for securities trading is the amount of sale advanced to customers on the trading day ('T day advance”]. These advances have a repayment period of 02 working days and
thie Company Is entitled to an interest rate of 0.0305%/day. The allocatien value of the securities transaction advance at the balance sheet date B equal Lo the original value due to
the shart recavery period. The fair value of loans is determined on the basis of the recoverable value of these loans.
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM BO9-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
74 Changes in fair value of financial asseis as at the year end

Atas 31 Decarnber 2024
Market value or valug Revaluation difference

sTT Financial assets Cost at the year end Increase Decroace Revalusted value
I.  Financial assets fair value to profit or loss (FTVPL)
1. LUisted stocks and stocks traded on UPCoM 245,231,279,205 335,999,670,231 93,507,043,188 2,738,652,160 335,999,670,231
2. Unlisted and unregistered traded stocks 157,685,852,685 157,689,852,695 - - 157,689,852,635
3. Maoney market instrumenis 120,000,000,000 120,000,000,000 - - 120,000,000,000
4. Fund certificate £3,910,860,000 64,036,852,504 125,992,504 - 54,036,852,504

GB6 831,991,900 677,726,375,430 93,633.035.690 2,738,652 160 677.726,375,430
At as 31 December 2023
Market value or value at Revaluation difference

5TT Financlal assets Cost the year end Increase Decrease Revaluated value
I, Financial assets fair value to profit or loss (FTVPL)
1. LUsted stocks and stocks traded an UPCoM 246,254,494,368 290,473,907,580 45,244,528,634 1,025,115,422 290,473,907,580
2. Unlisted and unregistered traded stocks 1,923,404 1,923,400 . = 1,923,400
3. Unlisted bond 201,700,000,000 201,700,000,000 - - 201,700,000,000

a447,956,417,768 492,175,830,980 45,244,528,634 1,025,115,822 492,175,830,980
24
50 A % o
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
BAO MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY = :
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Continued) FORM BOS-CTCK - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Cantinued) FORM BO3-CTCK
RECEIVABLES 10.  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Closing balance  Opening balance ﬂ
Machinery Office
VND VD ”
L and equipment Motor vehlcles equipment —_H
Receivables 13,293,973,474  370,644,465,543 m VND VND VND VND
Receivables from sole of financial ossets - 370,644,865,543 COST
Recelvables from sale of financial assets at fair value i 370,540,465,543 i Cpening balance 1,916,412,006 4,008,736400 5858199662  12,771,408,068
through profit/loss (*} i m Additions - 3,300,000,000 = 3,300,000,000
Rreceivabies and occruals from dividend and interest 93,973,474 Cisposals - {4,998,796,400) - [A,998,796,400|
Mceiti o leGHel ais¥ts i . - Closing balance L916A12,006  3,300,000,000  5,856,199,662 _ 11,072,611,668
Accrual interestincome from uniisted bond 7,395,671,231 - -
Acerual interest income from listed bond 5,715,068,493 - | ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Accrual [mterest inenme from Time degasity 154,530, 548 i = Opening balance 1,696,402,588  2,679,656378 5079273489  9,455332435
Accrual interest income from valuable peper 21,508,630 = Additians 94,139,025 725406980  2892254BR 1108861493
Accrual Imterest Income frem margin activities 7,014,572 = H Dispasals - [3,384,454,433) - (3.384,454,433)
Receivables from services provided by the Company 604,000 120,000,000 Closing balance 1,790,541,613 20,698,925  5,368,40§,957 7,179,739,495
Receivables from consuiting activities - 120,000,000 mn
S e - - NET BOOK VALUE
13,254,577 474 370,768,465,543 4
- Opening balanca 220,009.418  2,319,140,022 776,926,193  3,316,075,633
[*} The npening balance reprecents recatvables from tha sale of bonds. During the year, the Company hias fully f:;l L o
recousred these receivables. @/u_,: ™ Closing balance 125,870,393 3,279,301,075 447,700,705 3,892,872,173 .
c NG
!
At the end of the year, other recaivables are not everdue and are stlll recoverable, so the Company does not L m The cost of the Comipany's fixed assets as at 31 Decamber 2024 includes an amotint of VND 6,257, 610,268 fas ' ¥l
miake provisions according to current accounting regulations, £ ’ ﬂ at 31 December 1023; VMND 7,559,295,668) in respect of Tully depreciated items which are still in use. ]
: on
S
SHORT-TERM DEPQSITS, COLLATERALS AND PLEDGES %e;] - 11. |NTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS ]
Closing balance Opening baiance n
VND VND __ Computer softwire
Short-tarm m vND
Bffice rental deposit (i) 690,978,600 cosT
590,978,600 - m Dpening balance 12,652,525,440
- Additions 1,975,000,000
Long-term . Closing balance 14,627,525,440
Office rental deposit (i) 26,900.000,000 640,978,600 g
Others 730,000,000 5,000,000 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
27,639,000,000 595,978,600 m Opening balance 11,578,012,742
3 - Additions 500,615,736 ;E-
[i} Short-tarm office rental deposit as at 21 December 1024 represents the amount of office rental deposit on }{-‘P}' Clasing balance 12,078,628,478 =
the 1% and 3™ floors, Pax Sky Building, 34a Pham Mgoe Thach, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh City, #: 52 - ':Hr‘:r'
The annex to the lease contract was signed for a period of 3 years starting from 01 April 2022 to B May 2025, ; ir NET BOOK VALLE e
[: —rTa R ERE LOL
{il) The long-term office rental deposit as at 31 December 2024 represents the office rental deposit for the \\1. = Opwning halance e MOTAIA (1
expected lease term of 12 years from 1July 2025. This office rental depocit will b converted into prepaid office ‘:&__ v ~
rent and gradually deducted from the annual office rent during the lease term. o Closing balance 2,508 896,962 ey
" The cost of the Company's intangible assets as st 31 December 2024 |ncludes an ameunt of VAND
ﬂ 11,152,525,440 (a5 at 31 December 2023; VND 10,557,565,440) in respect of fully depreciated items which are
- still in use.
s |
L=
5 26
5 ]
74




BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued] FORM BO9-CTCK

BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) FORM BO3-CTCK

12 PAYMENTS TO SETTLEMENT ASSISTANCE FUND 15, BOND ISSUED

payment for settlement assistance fund represents the amounts deposited at Vietnam Securities Depasitory A5 at 31 December 2024, the short-term bends Issued include: (1) 2,600 bonds issued In the first private

and Clearlng Corporation (VSDE). According te the prevailing regulation of Vietnem Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation, the Company must depasit an initial amount of VND 120 million at the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corparation [VSDLC) and pay on an annual basis an addition of 0.01% of the total
amount of brokered securities In the previous year, but not exceeding YND 2.5 billlon per annum. The maximum
contribution of each custady member to the Settiement Assistance Fund is VND 20 billion for custody members
being securlties companies with securities trading and brokerage activities,

Detalls of payment to the Payment Support Fund are as follows:
Closing balance Opening balance

placement, with a term of 13 months frem 21 June 2024 to 21 luly 2025, with & fiked interest rate of 9.5% pa
for the entire term of the bonds unsecured and interest is payable at maturity; (i) 1,500 bonds ssued in the
second private placement, with a term of 12 months from 16 September 2024 to 16 September 2025, witha
fixed interest rate of 10% p.a, unsecured and interest is payahble at maturity. These bonds have a face value of
VND 100,000,000/bond. The purpese of lssuance is to restructure the debt of the Issuer. As at 31 December
2023, the Company has no lssued bonds outstanding,

TAX AND OTHER RECE/VABLES AND PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET

 E R B B R BB EEBEREE SR NS SRR

VND VD (Receihvable )/ Received/
Openlng Payable during Pald during Closing
Initial deposit 120,000,000 120,000,000 balance the year the year balance
Additlonal deposit 4,031,620,369 3,822,557,041 N e VND VND VHND VD
Allocated interest in the year ;j:‘::m-“:; lm-:: Corparate income tax 7,188451,832  10,413,779.065  4,544,045,769 1318,718,536
b. Tax payables
OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS Personal Income tax 10,562,903 ,664 21,164,747,085 27,843,300,108 3,884,350,651
Closing balance Opening balance Value added tax 105,663,181 1.917,788,2490 1.818,689,129 204,762,293
VND VND 10,668,566,845 23,082,535,335 19,661,989,237 4,089,112,543
==
Receivatiles fram imvestment cooperation (i) 8,100,000,000 - NG SHORT-TERM ACCRUAL EXPENSES
#,100,000,000 - Closing balance Opening balance
::::ﬁ‘ VD vnD
{l} Represents the capital contributlon to 56 Space Halding Investment Joint Stock Company under Cooperatian .|NH Bond interest enpense 17,525,479,451 ;
Contract No. 16/2024-BMSC/HDHT signed on December 30, 2024 (*Cooperation Contract 16} and the 2 Loan Interest expense 154,100,357 1.223,013,699
::lmngl ‘; am:m:gghs:;ple;::::::mratt of Conperation Contract 16. The accounting policy far [i3- Bk inted o rikess 508,338,047 2 240 158 351
il o
nvestment eaope ? 18,277,917 855 2,505,172,5950
1a. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
18, OTHER SHORT-TERM PAYABLES
Opening balance During tha year Closing balance Closing balance Oparing balance
VHD VND WND
AmountfAmount Amount/Amount ;a::::;n securities transactions (1) ; - £4,564,871,351
able to be paid off Decrease able to be paid off payable 1o shareholders 2,515,094, 100 2,595,011,700
Others 14,877,500 12,184,806
2,529,971,600 47,172,067,857
'i'"h':;:“““:;;:":::“" Joint  00,000,000,000  525,240,000,000 299000000000  426,240,000,000 ; :
Stor =HC { {1} Represents payablas to investors refated to bond contracts. During the year, the Company has fully settied
Tin Wiet Finance Jaint Scock Company 100,006,000,000 - 100.000,000,000 = = these paysbles for securities transactions with nvestors related to the bond contracts,
000,000 525200,000,000 399,000,000,000  26,240,000,000 ~3
ot T‘? 19, DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY

(1) Represents the shart-term borrawing balance as of 31 December 2024 from Vietnam Thuong Tin Commercial 4
Joint Stock Bank - HCM Branch under a 12-maonth térm credit limit loan contract from 25 March 2024 1o 25 e
March 2025 with 3 total eredit fimit of VN D 500,000,000,000 to finance working capital for government bend ot

IS RPN ERAEEEN

trading. This borrowing bears Interest on each debt receipt and is secured by Bonds issued by the Credit =

Institution with carrying ameunt as ot 31 December 2024 of WND 360,000,000,000 (includes amount of VKD At the beginning of prior year 1,425,703,330
260,000,000,000 of unlisted bonds and YND 100,000,000,000 of listed bonds) and stocks with a market value Recorded in the income statement for the year (Note 26) {10,269,586,472)
#¢at 31 December 2024 of YND 110,055,000,000, At the end of prior year (8,843,882,642}
Recorded In the Income statement for the year [Note 25) (9,334,994,064)
At the balance sheet date T (18,178,876,706)

7
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPARNY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued|

20. OWNERS' EQUITY

Authorized to issue and fully contributed

Quartity (shares]

Face value [VND/share]

Value (VND)

FORM B09-CTCK

Closing balance DOpening balance
VND VND

71,111,425 64,647,613
10,000 10,000
711,114,250,000 B46,476,130,000

&l of the Company's shares are ordinary shares. & share of a company provides the owner with a right to vote
at the Company's shareholders' meetings, Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends declared by the

Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with respect to the Company's remalning assets.

Aceording to the latest amended license No. 66/GPDC-UBCK daled 29 August 2024, the Company's charter
eapital is VMO 711,114,250,000. The Hst of major shareholders of the Company holding 5% or mare of its shares
and othar chareholders s as follows:

Closing balance Opening balance
Sharas % VND Shares % VHD
4 I70
Wajor sharehalders (Note 31) 49,793,783 70 497,937,830,000 45,267,077 70 R0, 'B:
Rang Ngoc Jolnt Stock Company 17,067,441 24 170,674,410.000 15 515,856 24 155 158,560,000
Long An Sofar Park Corgaration 16,370,044 23 163, 700,440,000 - - .
Ms. Truang Thi My An 16,356,398 23 163,562,980,000 J4.B69.362 23 148,693,620,000
Mr. Duong Tien Dung - . - 14,881,859 23 148,818,550,000
Others 21,317,642 30 213,176,420,000 19,380,536 30 153,805,360,000
Total 71,111,425 100 711,114250,000 64,647,613 100 646,476,130,000
21 DISCLOSURES OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
211 Depaosits for securities brokerage activities
Clasing balance Opening balance
VND VND
investors’ deposits for securities trading activities -
§ by the Company 176,956,084,838 41,968,074,792
176,856,084, 538 41,968,074,739
21.2  Depaosits of securities issuers
Closing bal Opening balance
VYND YND
Deposits of securities Issuars 2,047,121 659 1,944,626,749
2.047,121,658 1,844,626,749
213  Payable to Investors
Closing balance Dpening balance
VND VND
Payables to investors - imvesters’ depasits for securltles i
wading activities managad by the Company 176,956,084, 838 41,968,074,
176,956,084, 538 41,968,074,793

I 782F 66\
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BAO MINH SECURITIES JDINT STOCK COMPANY
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

214

215

payable dividend, principal and interest on bonds

Payable dividend, principal and interest an bonds

Bad debts written-off

FORM BOS-CTCK

Closing balance Opening balance
VND VYHD
2,047,121.653 1,544,626,748
2,047,121,658 1,944 626,749

During the year, the Company assessed that the balance ralated to the margin loan with the amount af VND
3.641,652,645 arieing from 2012 (Note 7.3] was irmecoverable, Therefore, the Company submitted a proposal
and received approval from the Board of Directors to write off the entire value of the aforementionzd margin
loan using the allowance for doubtful debts, which had been fully provisioned since 2014 in atcordance with

current accounting regulations.
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) FORM BOS-CTCK
22, OPERATING INCOME
221 Gain/{lass) from dispasals of financial assets at FUTPL

Current year Prior year

VND VMD

Gain from disposals of FVTPL 64,315,417,416 96,315,926,432

Loss fram dispasals of FYTPL [9,723,152,092} [62,690,320,402)

54,507.265,324 35,625,516,020

Details of net profit from the sale of FYTPL finandal assats by type are as follows:
Weighted average
No. Financial assets Quantity unit Procesds  costattheendof o '“’"‘:"““" S, SN ‘:;"1':":"‘!:
transaction date Ll ¥
Galn
1 Stocks 53,661,602 951,267,222.570 920,005,263,864 31,261,958, 652 4,371 315 BO9
7  Bonds 10,333,931 4,602,262,530,000 4,580,384,020,000 21,878,510,000 30,484 BAD,506
3 Certificate of deposit - 55,138,047,950 54,548,547,950 511,198,630 769,379,715
4 Time deposit F 279,840,598 042 279,000,000,000 840,598,042 -
82,994,533 5, 888,508,398,512 5 833,937 831,818 54,592,265,324 35,625,536,030
i1
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BAO MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Continued) FORM BO9-CTCK
22.2  Revaluation difference of financial assets at FVTPL
Current year Prios year
VND VND
Gain from revaluation ef FYTPL 133,877,560,254 111,422,745,828
Loss from revalustion of FYTRL [87,202,589,936) (60,074,813,467)
46,674,970,318 51,347,932,361
Detafls of revaluation differences of financial assets by type are as follows:
Revaluation Revaluation
Market value difference as at difference #3 at Met gain recorded
No. Financial assets Cast or fair value 31 December 2024 31 December 2023 this year
I.  Financial assets at FVTPL SE6.531.991.900 677726375430 90.894.383.530 44.219.413.212 d6.674.970.318
1 Lsted stocks and stocks traded an UPCoM 245.231.279.205 335.990.670.231 (1, 768.391.076 44.219.413.212 45,548 977.214
2. Unlisted and unregistered traded stocks 157 6B9.852 695 157 6B9.852.695 - =
3. Money market Instruments 120.0:00,000.000 120.000.600.000 = =
4. Fund certificate 63.910.860.000 B4.036.852 504 125.992.504 - 125092 504
586.831,991,900 677.726.375.430 90.894,383.530 44.219.413.212 46.674.970.318
223  Dividend, Interest income from financial assets, loan recoivables and receivables
Current year Prior year
VND VHD
From financial assets FVTPL 16,768, 248,504 98,728,574,008
From held-to-matut ity | "HT8") investments 27,157,205,810 .
From loans and other receivables 2,259,695,460 230,579,277
46,185,150,574 98,959,153, 285
e U Bt 32
o linlz e e
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BAD MINH SECURITIES IOINT STOCK COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

23 FINANCIAL EMPEMNSES

Loan interest expense
Bond Interest expense

24, GEMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee expenses
- Payroll and other employees’ benefits

- Social insurance, Health insurance, Unemployment

insurance and Linian fee
Depreciation and amortization
Tax, fees and charges
Out-sourced sery|ces

Cthers

5. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES

25.1  Otherincome

Collect late payment penalties
Sale fram liquidation of fixed assets
Others

152  Other expenses

Cther expenses include administrative fines and other expenses,

26, CORPORATE INCOME TAX EMPENSE

Corporate income 1ax expense recorded in the

income statement
Current conporate inCome tax expense

Deferred corporate income tax expense {Notes 19)

Current corparate income tax expense for the year & calculated as follows:

Profit befors tax

Adjustment ta reduce toxabile income related o the

increased differences from the revaluation of
financial ossels ot FVTPL

[Decrease |increase odjustments fo foxable incame

Tauable profit
Corporate incame tax rate

Corporate income tax expense calculated on current

year taxable income
Currant corporate Income tax expenses

FORM BO9-CTCK
Current year Prior year
VND VND
27,898,694,320 5,152.224,535
17,965,479,451 -
45,864,173,771 5,152,2324,535
CQurrent year Prior yoar
VND VND
19,139,864, 623 18,734,990,618
17,703,138,083 I 441111841
1,436,726,740 1,293.878,777
262,335,897 352,964 935
3,000,000 3,000,000
9,784,713,247 7,670,054 620
300,000,000 -
29,485,913,967 26,761,010,243
Current year Prior year
VND VND
2,538,206,574 £,409,303,843
394,244,396 -
59,528,277 31,356,000
1,997,029,247 8,440,659,843
Current year Prior year
VND VND
10,413,779.065 11,272,176,398
5,334,994, 064 10,269,586, 472
19,748,773,129 21,541,762,870
Current year Prior year
VND VND
101,285,633,775 105,573,216,256
{48,629.058,880} f51,347,922,361)
{587,678,570) 2,135, 598,095
52,068,805 325 56,360,881,930
20% 20%
10,413,779,065 11,272,176,308
10,413,779,065 11,271,176,398

Tha Company is obliged to pay corporate income tax at the rate of 20% of it taxable profit.
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (Continued) FORM BO9-CTCK

1. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
27,1, GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Company's activities are carried out within the territory of Vietnam. Accordingly, the General Director said that the Company’s risks and profitability are not mainly affected by
geographical differences.

27.2.  BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Revenue and expenses by main business segments of the Company are as follows

For the year ended 31 December 2024

i Self-rrading Financial Consulting Others Total
and custody
VND WHD VND VND VD
Revenue 33 037 463,755 243,118,832, 384 16,483,185 250 678,099,253 292,317,180,642
Expense 9,622,309,587) {102,667,059,625) (6,231,995, 826) (499, 785,555) 1119,021,150.593)
73,415,154, 168 139,851,372, 759 10,251,189,424 178,313,698 173,296,030,049
For the year ended 31 December 2023
Securitizs broke

d ’:Mm i Seiftrading  Financlal Consulting Others Total
VND VND VND VND VND
Revenue 7,156,364,212 308,467, 246,268 B,252,846,341 707,783,008 322,584,230,829
Enpinse {5.961,571,367) [1#1,905,307,229) |5,681,463,981) - (193,548,432,577)
1,194,792,845 126,561,849,039 571,382,360 707,783,008 129,035,807,252

34
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BAD MINH SECUR(TIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY n BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) FORM BO9-CTCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Continued) FORM BO9-CTCK
28. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE n Credit risk
Basic earnings per share bs caleulated by dividing net prafit attributable to shareholders and bonus and L Credit risk is the risk that counterparty to a financial instrument will fail 1o discharge an obligation or
welfare funds by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, sxcluding sl commitmant that it has entared with the Company, resulting in a finandal loss ta the Company. It arises
pedinary shares repurchased by the Company and held as treasury shares, principally from cash in banks, financial assets, recelvables, and ather financial assets
Prior year ™
Current year [Restated) = Market risk
= § - N
) Market risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate according
Profit attributable to ordinary sharehalders (VN Sl SHa A E G i - to changes in market prices. The Company's market risks Include Interest rate risk, currency risk and other
::I'!:stto re?::::qe amount of bonus and welfare (6,522,948,852) {5,282,201,737) price risk such as securlties price risk.
m The Company mansges this market risk through diversification of its Investment portfolic and critical
Profit for calculating basic earnings per share 75,012,911,784 78,149,251,649 appralsal of sesiitles tis b fruesbed inwithin linlted uhgieuras.
Waighted awverage number of ardinary shares {**| 71,111,425 71,111,425 “
Basic earnings per share (VND/share) 1,055 1,099 - *  Interest rate risk
Thie Company is exposed tointerast rate risk on financial assets and labilities for which the Company
{*] The hanus and welfare fund used by the Board of Directors to caloulate the basic eamnings per share E Is entitled or bears inu.erasl. I:urn!nﬂ!r, the Company recognizes financial assets and liabilities at
is restated based on the Resolution No. 16/2024-BMSC/NQ-BHECE dated 23 April 2024 of the Company’s historical cest less provisions for impairment, therefore, the Company |5 onfy exposed 1o cash flow
General Meeting of Sharehalders, ] ;:s.k '!ltl“:d mdlmanle;: receivable and payable. The Company Is exposed to Interest rate risk mainly
am Its term deposits.
[**} Including 6,463,812 shares issued to pay dividends fram undistributed profit after tax of 2023 ™ The Company’s term deposits have fised interest rates and short term so the risk dug to interest rate
according to the Notice of change in the number of voting shares dated 24 Juna 2024. Therelore, for the Nuctuations ks Insignificant.
purpose af caleulating the basie earnings per share, the average number of outstanding shares for 2023 =
has been adjusted accordingly. - " Currency risk
5 Curreney risk s the risk that the value of the Company's financlal Instruments will be affected by
Rustisbed Sesic-urnlings per shane Sor eior yaos \ - changes In exchange rates. The Company |5 estabiished and operates in Vietnam with the reporting
% ]
Tha Company has announced a change In the number of voting shares from the issuance of 6,463,812 ) e Brbioipiabes W;;‘ﬁ R SompAR transuction: curency b ske Viebunise
shares, equivalent le VMDD 646 381,120,000 to pay dividends from undistributed after-tax profits of 2023, m ™ onig, o the currency risk is insl cant.
Therefare, the Company has restated the basic Ioss per.share of the previous year as follows: - o Securities price risk
Weishted ave The stocks and bonds under financial assels portfalio held by the Company are affected by market
mm:E nfnrdlr Bk cariling - risk dueto the uncertainty in the future value of these securitles. The Company manages s securities
3 sharg . r share price risk by setting up Investment Imits, The Company's Investment Commitiee also takes part in
VND = VND ] appraisal and approval of securities investment decisions.
Liguidity risk
Amount audited in prior year 68,647,613 1209 = :
Impact of Increasing charter capital from equity capital 5,463,812 i110} ;I::FJEI:IN risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty or fall to perform its financial
Amount adjusted 71,111,425 1,099 ™ Hes.
The Company's approach 10 manage liguidity risk ks to maintain sufficient highly liquid financial assers
The Company has no potential shares that would have a dilutive effect on earnings per share ™ portfolio to meet liquldity requirements in the shert term and long term.
29, FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT RISK = Capital management
The Company's activities expose to financial risks including credit risk, market risk Bﬂ:f‘:limﬂ:iﬁiﬁk- T::: [ | Capital Adequacy Ratio
‘s ovarall risk management stra eks to minimise the potentlal adverse effect st [
ET::EZ:'\PNI"S pl-trfﬂfngm . ™ ™ Caphtal Adequacy Ratio ("CAR") ls an indicator that measures the Company’s financlal safety and ability
to meet its financial obligations and ahsorb certaln losses resulting from risks asising during its business
The General Director af the Company is respansible for setting the objectives and underlying principles ™ uperation,
of financial risk management for the Company, The General Director establishes the detailed policles .\“l' :
such 25 rlsk identification and measurement, investment strategy and limits. Risk management policles ™ CAR i5 calculated and presented In the Company's monthly capital adequacy ratio report in accordance . ‘.:
and systems are reviewed regularly to address the changes and align to market trends. with Cireular 91/2020/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance on 13 November 2020 ("Clreular 51}, = '
n Circular 91 stipulates calculation method of capltal adequacy ratio applicable to securities trading. ) N
Financlal risk management is carried out by risk management personnel, The risk management personnel . f.
: institutions and sanctions imposed on these with nor-compiiance. According 1o Clrcular 91, the Company ¢
ure actual nst the limits ser and prepare perlodical reports for the review of the
AN A BRI A SRR $ | is required ta malntain a preseribed minimum leval of CAR of 180%.
General Director.
The information presented below I based on information assessed by the General Director. ™ As at 31 December 2024, the Campany's CAR was 252.9% (as =t 31 December 2023; 408.1%).
35 H 36
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BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY BAD MINH SECURITIES JOINT 5TOCK COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Continued) FORM BOS-CTCK m NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) FORM B09-CTCK
3o, COMMITMENTS ﬂ Significant refated party balances as at the balance sheet date were as follows:
o ing lease commitments |
perating M| Closing balance Opening balance
Current year Prlor year '!"! L bl
VND VND ﬁ
Minkmum operating |ease costs recognized in the income Capital contribution of Major shareholders’ balance 457,037,830,000 452,670,770,000
statement far the year 3,726,472,824 2,797,487,865 m (e 20)
At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commitments under operating leases, which m Remuneération paid to the Company’s Board af Directors, General Director and Board of Supervisors
fall due a& follows: durlng the year was as follows:
Closing balance Opsulig bnuich m Board of Directors and Genaral Diractor
VND VND
ﬂ Name Position Current year Prior year
Within one year 1,433,345,108 2,763,914,400 m VHD VD
In the second to the fifth year indusive 1,382,400,000 £2%,851,750
2,815,745,108 3,593,766,150 ™ Mir, Thieu Huis Chung Chairman 1,893,600,000 1,751,288 283
Mr. Tran Mgo Phue Bao Viee Chairman/Adviser 2.952,260,018 2,690,592,505
n The aperating |ease commitment represents the Comparry's rent payable for 165 m? on the 12 ™ Mir. Phan Tan Thu General Director, Member 3,853,820.852 3,345,757,006
fleor and 225 m® on the 3 Floor, Pax Sky Bullding, 34A Pham Ngoc Thach, Yo Thi Sau Ward, ) Wi, Hoang Vian Thang Member 360,000,000 1,080,320,000
District 3, Ho Chi Minh City. The annex to the lease contract was signed for a period of 3 years _'"‘ = Mr, Do Van Ha Mamber 120,000,000 80,000,000
starting from 1 April 2022 10 8 May 2025. y o M. Tran Thi Thanh Huong  Member (resigned on 21 April 2023) - \ 40,000,000
(i} Cammitment to the payable lease amaunt for the Valkswagen vehicle for a period of 5 years G I: | Wir, Dao Van Chisu Member {resigned an 21 April 2023} - N \ 20,000,000
starting from 1 April 2024, *H \ 9
il | 8,179,680,670 = i:,gm,sﬁs.:s
i
3L RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WIN [z
i lﬂ Board of Supervisors 'l-/—‘_-,"
The list of the Company's major related parties as at the balance sheet date Is as follows: g - Harg Position et ysie ¥ Prioe yeor
Related parties Relationship VND VND
Dragon Mgoc loint Stock Company Entity owning 10% or more of shares m
Long An Snlar Park Corporation Entity owning 10% or mare of shares - s, Ngwyen Thy Phuong  Head of the Board of Supervisars 120,000,000 £0,000,000
{fram 19 December 2024) ! M3, Mot Thi Lan Uyen Member 48,000,000 44,000,000
Ms. Truong Thi My An Shareholders owning 10% or more of shares - Ms, Triong Thi Bich Ngan  Member 45,000,000 32,000,000
Kir. Duong Tien Dung Shareholders owning 10% or more of shares ' Head of the Board of Supervisors
(to 19 December 2024) L] Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Tho {resigned on 21 April 2023) 20,000,000
Design and Construction Jaint Stock Company No.1 Entity related to inslder . . 12,000,000
Binh Dinh Pharmaceutical and Medical Equipment Entity refated to insider ™~ Mr- Phamm Le Quang Minh Member {resignad.on 21 April2023) e il
Joint Stock Company . 28,000/ 18,000
Lighthouse Bond Fund Entity related to insider m 3 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Lighthouse Capital Dynamic Fund Entity related 1o insider
F m Mo events have occurred subsequent tothe balance sheet date that require consideration as adjustments
with i | 2 .
During the year, the Company entered into the following significant transactions with its ralsted parties s S dlschgones in s nanciel §i iy
Current year Prior year :
VND VN = M|
Service revenug _;F‘F\" //
Design and Construction Joint Stock Company No.1 300,000,000 180,000,000 ,‘_,g,'; n
| will n
Issued stock dividend '\?r!i Dang Thuy Trang =
Umgon fgoe foint Stock Comparry i SREB5A000 “5‘&‘_‘ f Chief Accauntant - Preparer General Directar i
Mr. Duang Tien Dung 14,881,850,000 B,416,620,000 \\.L 28 March 2025 e L
Ms, Truang Thi My An 14,869,360,000 8,423,690,000 [ |
37 n L
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